TASECO LAND INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No: 548/2025/CBTT-TASECOLAND Hanoi, April 22,2025

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ON THE HA NOI STOCK EXCHANGE’S PORTAL

To: Hanoi Stock Exchange.

1. Organization name: TASECO LAND INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY.
Ticker: TAL

Address: 1st Floor, NO2-T1 Building, Diplomatic Complex, Xuan Tao Road,
Xuan Tao Ward, Bac Tu Liem District, Hanoi City.

Telephone: 024 3793 2525
Fax: 024 3793 2626
2. Content of information disclosure:

Taseco Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company announces the Resolution
and Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

3. This Information was published on the Company's website on April 22", 2025,
at the following link: https://tasecoland.vn/vi/shareholder-document/dai-hoi-dong-co-
dong-thuong-nien-2025/

We hereby declare to be responsible for the accuracy and completeness of the
above information. (v ,

Attached documents: PARTY AUTHOR]ZED TO DISCLOSE INFORMATION
The Resolution and Minutes of the 9 ¥ NERAL DIRECTOR
2025 Annual General Meeting of d S

Shareholders.

Cao Thi Lan Huong



TASECO LAND INVESTMENT THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No: 01/2025/NQ-DHDCD Hanoi, April 21*, 2025
RESOLUTION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TASECO LAND INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020;
Pursuant to the Charter of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company;,
Pursuant to the Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company No. 01/2025/BB-DHDCD dated April
21, 2025.

RESOLUTION:

Article 1. Approval of the report on the Company's business performance
and the Board of Directors' activities in 2024; the Plan for Company’s business
and the Board of Directors' activities in 2025 (according to the content of Report
No. 01/2025/BC-HDQT dated March 28, 2025 attached).

1. Some business results indicators in 2024,

Yo
: 2024 Plan 2024 Result
Tricatur (billion VND) | (billion VND) Res‘(‘g’f i
(1}
Consolidated revenue 3,040.0 1,684.5 55.4%
Consolidated profit before tax 614.0 875.6 142.6%
Consolidated profit afier tax 475.0 685.0 144.2%
2. Some indicators of the 2025 production and business plan
o 2025 Plan
No. Indicator (billion VND)
1 Consolidated revenue 4,332.0
2 | Consolidated profit before tax 686.0
3 | Consolidated profit after tax 536.0
4 | Expected dividend rate _ 15%

3. Board of Directors’ Remuneration Plan for 2025.

a) Board of Directors remuneration in 2025



Salary/ Number

No. Title Quantity month of (rf%;l)
(VND) months
1 | Chairman of the BOD 01 15,000,000 12 180,000,000
2 | Vice Chairman of the BOD 02 10,000,000 12 240,000,000
3 | Member of the BOD 02 7,000,000 12 168,000,000
Total remuneration 588,000,000

Note: Remuneration for members of the Board of Directors is included in the
Company's business operating expenses .

b) Salary and bonuses of Executive Board members in 2025: payment will be
made according to the Company's Salary and bonus regulations and support for
employees.

¢) Bonus for the Board of Directors in 2025: To be allocated from the
company’s reward and welfare fund and shall not exceed the percentage approved by
the General Meeting of Shareholders.

4. Authorization for the Board of Directors:

Based on the actual production and business activities of the Company and its
member companies in 2025 and the market situation, the Board of Directors decided to
adjust the Company’s 2025 Production and Business Plan.

The Board of Directors is responsible for reporting and explaining to
shareholders the adjusted contents at the next Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

Article 2. Approval of the Report on the Board of Supervisors’ 2024
Activities and Plan for 2025 Activities. (according to the attached Report No.
01/2025/BC-BKS dated March 28, 2025).

In which the 2025 Board of Supervisors’ remuneration plan is approved as follows:

Salary/
o : Number Total
No. Position Quantity monﬂ; WA (VND)
1 | Head of the BOS 01 5,000,000 12 60,000,000
2 | Member of the BOS 02 3,000,000 12 72,000,000
Total remuneration 132,000,000

Note: Remuneration for members of the Board of Supervisors is included in the
Company's business operating expenses.

Article 3. Approval of the 2024 Audited Financial Statements (4ccording to
the content of Proposal No. 01/2025/TTr-HPQT dated March 28, 2025 attached)

Article 4. Approval of the distribution of after-tax profits in 2024 and the
plan for distribution of after-tax profits in 2025.

1. Report on profit distribution results in 2024
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No.

Indicator

Amount ( VND )

A | Figures on the separate Financial Statements

1 Undistributed earnings by the end of 2023 529,982,551,040

2 | Profit after corporate income tax in 2024 775,013,562,285
Dividend 2023 in Cash, paid in September 2024 (15%

3 par value, based on Charter capital of VND 2,970 billion) 445,500,000,000

4 Deduction of reward and welfare funds 25,977,101,036
Accumulated undistributed profit after tax as of

. December 31, 2024 (5=1+2-3-4) SRl o7

B | Figures on consolidated financial statements

1 Undistributed earnings by the end of 2023 447,780,350,052

2 | Profit after corporate income tax in 2024, in which: 685,099,930,448

. Profit aﬁe_r lax atiributable to shareholders of the parent 664.816.258,791
company in 2024

b | Profit after tax attributable to non-controlling interests 20,283,691,051
Dividend 2023 in Cash, paid in September 2024 (15%

2 par value, based on Charter capital of VND 2,970 billion) S H00a00

4 | Adjusting merge entries 6,549,914

5 Deduction of reward and welfare funds (4%) 27,157,101,036
Accumulated undistributed profit after tax until

6 | December 31, 2024 (6=1+2 (a)-3+4-5) 639,946,057,721

2. Approve the 2024 profit distribution
|
No. Indicator Amount (VND)

Payment of cash dividends in 2024 (15% par value,

> based on Chartercapital of VND 3,118.5 billion) 11750000
Retained earnings carried over to 2025 - Separate

2 Financial Statements (I1.2=L.A.5-11.1) 365,744,012,289

3 Retained earnings carried over to 2025 - Consolidated

Financial Statements (I1.3=1.B.6-11.1)

172,171,057,721

3. Profit Distribution Plan for 2025

: Rate (%)/
No.
o Indicator Amount (VND)
Profit after corporate income tax in 2025 on -
1 Separate Financial Statements >33,000,000,000

-2

Profit after corporate income tax in 2025 on
Consolidated Financial Statements

536,000,000.000
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. Rate (%)/
No. Indicator Amount (VND)
Deduction of reward and welfare funds Upto 3%
4 | Expected dividend rate 15%

4, Implementation:

a) Assign the Board of Directors to organize the payment of dividends for 2024
according to the rate approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

b) Based on the actual production and business activities of the Company and its
member companies in 2025 and the market situation, within the ratio approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors is authorized to decide: (i)
advance payment of dividends for 2025; (ii) allocate and use the reward and welfare fund.

The Board of Directors is responsible for reporting and explaining the above
contents to shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Article 5. Approve the list of independent auditing companies for priority
consideration and selection to audit the 2025 financial statements.

1.  List of selected auditing companies:

a) Ernst & Young Vietnam Company Limited.

b) Deloitte Vietnam Company Limited (Deloitte).

¢) PricewaterhouseCoopers Vietnam Company Limited (PWC VN) .

d) KPMG Vietnam Company Limited.

e) A&C Auditing and Consulting Company Limited.

f) AASC Auditing Company Limited.

2. Authorizing the Board of Directors to consider and decide on the selection
of 01 of the above companies to audit the Company's 2025 Financial Statements.

Article 6. Approval of amendments and supplements to the Company
Charter (according to the content of Submission No. 03/2025/TTr-HDQOT dated
March 28, 2025 attached).

Article 7. Approval of the transfer of the registration of trading shares of
Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company on the UPCOM trading system to
the registration of listing shares on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange (“HOSE”)

1. Register for the listing of TAL shares on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange and
delist TAL shares from the UPCOM trading system of the Hanoi Stock Exchange.

2. Ticker: TAL.

3. Type of securities: Common stock.

4. Par value: 10,000 VND/share.

5. Number of shares registered for listing: All shares issued by the Company up
to the time of registration for listing at the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange .

6. Expected time to submit listing registration application: In 2025.
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7. Authorization to the Board of Directors:

a) Based on market conditions and business operations, the Board of Directors
shall determine the timing for the share listing registration on HOSE when the
company meets all listing requirements per legal regulations.

b) Decide and direct relevant departments to carry out the necessary procedures
and complete the application for listing TAL shares on the Ho Chi Minh Stock
Exchange, as well as the procedure for transferring TAL shares from UPCOM to
HOSE, including but not limited to: registering the listing of shares on HOSE,
delisting shares from UPCOM, finalizing the shareholder list at the Vietnam Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation for the transfer, selecting the timing and offering
price for the first trading day on HOSE.

c) Carry out other legal procedures as required by relevant authorities to
complete the transfer from UPCOM to HOSE.

Article 8. Approval of the additional business lines of the Company.

1. The Company's business lines as follows:

No. Names of additional business lines Code
1 | Preschool education 8511
2 | Preschool education 8512
3 | Primary education 8521
4 | Lower secondary education 8522
5 | Upper secondary education 8523
6 | Basic-level training 8531
7 | Intermediate-level training 8532
8 | College-level training 8533
9 | University training 8541
10 | Master training 8542
11 | Doctoral training 8543
12 | Sports and recreation education 8551
13 | Cultural education 8552
14 | Other education not elsewhere classified 8559
15 | Educational support activities 8560
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No. Names of additional business lines Code
16 | Hospital and health station activities 8610
17 | Medical and dental practice activities 8620
18 | Preventive medicine activities 8691
19 | Orthopedic and rehabilitation centers 8692
20 | Other human health activities not elsewhere classified 8699

2. Amendment and supplement to the Company Charter

Amend and supplement Clause 1, Article 4 on business lines and professions in
the Company Charter corresponding to the content stated in Clause 1 of this Article.

3. Implementation

Assigning/authorizing the General Director - Legal Representative of the
Company to organize and implement tasks related to changing business registration
contents, including but not limited to the following tasks:

a) Carry out procedures related to adding business lines at the competent
Business Registration Authority, including adjusting detailed content within the scope
of business lines approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

b) Carry out other procedures related to adding business lines according to the
provisions of law.

Article 9. Approval of the election results of the Board of Directors for the
2025 - 2030 term, accordingly, the Board of Directors members include:

- Mr. Pham Ngoc Thanh - Member of the Board of Directors;
Mr. Nguyen Minh Hai - Member of the Board of Directors;
- Mr. Nguyen Tran Tung - Member of the Board of Directors;
- Mr. Do Viet Thanh - Member of the Board of Directors:
- Mr. Le Duc Long - Independent Member of the Board of Directors.

The newly elected members of the Board of Directors will hold their first
meeting to elect the Chairman of the Board of Directors for the 2025-2030 term as
prescribed.

"

Article 10. Approval of the election results of the Board of Supervisors for
the 2025 - 2030 term, accordingly, the Board of Supervisors members include:

- Ms. Tran Thi Loan Member of the Board of Supervisors
- Mr. Dang Xuan Hien Member of the Board of Supervisors
- Ms. Luu Thi Quynh Giang Member of the Board of Supervisors

The newly elected members of the Board of Supervisors will hold their first
meeting to elect the Head of the Board of Supervisors for the 2025-2030 term as
prescribed.
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Article 11. Effective date

This Resolution takes effect from the date of signing. The Board of Directors, the
Board of Supervisors, the Board of Management and relevant individuals are
responsible for implementing this Resolution./ .

Recipient: ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL
- As Article 11; MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
- Shareholders; CHAIRMAN OF BOARD OF

- Save: Office, Legal Department. DIRECTORS
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BAT DONG

Pham Ngoc Thanh
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TASECO LAND INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No: 01/2025/BB-DHDCD Hanoi, April 21, 2025

MINUTES OF THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TASECO LAND INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

A. BUSINESS INFORMATION

1. Company name: Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company (hereinafter
referred to as “Company” or “Taseco Land™).

2. Abbreviation: TASECO LAND.

3. Head office: 1st Floor, Building NO2-T1, Diplomatic Corps, Xuan Tao Street,
Xuan Tao Ward, Bac Tu Liem District, Hanoi City.

4. Business registration number: 0104079036.

B. PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING THE GENERAL MEETING

1. Time: nnAt 3:00 p.m. on April 21, 2025.

2. Location: Pacific Room 1&2, 2nd Floor, PAN PACIFIC Hanoi Hotel, No. 1,
Thanh Nien Street, Ba Dinh District, Hanoi City.

3. Participants

- Shareholders owning and representing shares of Taseco Land Investment Joint
Stock Company based on the List of Shareholders established on March 26, 2025;

- Board of Directors (“BOD”);

- Board of Management (“BOM”);

- Board of Supervisors (“BOS™);

- Managers.

4. Report on checking the qualifications of shareholders attending the
General Meeting

Mr. Do Le Nam - Head of the Shareholder Eligibility Verification Committee
presented the Report on Verification of Shareholder Eligibility attending the General
Meeting as of 3:00 p.m., right before the opening of the General Meeting. (Report on
Verification of Shareholder Eligibility dated April 21, 2025).

The results as follows:

- Total number of shareholders of the Company: 1,272 shareholders.

- The total number of shareholders directly attending and authorized persons
validly attending the General Meeting is: 114 people, representing 298,956,925 shares,
accounting for 95.87% of the total number of voting shares of the Company (List of
shareholders attending the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders attached).



- Total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting: 298,956,925 votes.

Thus, according to the provisions of Clause 1, Article 145 of the Law on
Enterprises 2020 and the provisions of Clause 19.1, Article 19 of the Company
Charter, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders ("AGM") of the Company
is legal, valid and eligible to be conducted according to the regulations.

5. Approval of the Presidium

The Organizing Committee of the Meeting introduces Mr. Pham Ngoc Thanh -
Chairman of the Board of Directors as the Chairman of the Meeting according to the
provisions of Clause 2, Article 146 of the Law on Enterprises 2020 and introduces
personnel to participate in the Presidium for the Meeting to vote:

- Mr. Nguyen Minh Hai - Vice Chairman of the BOD - Member;

- Mr. Nguyen Tran Tung - Member of the BOD, General Director - Member;

- Mr. Do Viet Thanh - Member of the BOD, Deputy General Director -
Member;

- Ms. Cao Thi Lan Huong - Deputy General Director - Member.

The Meeting voted to approve the Presidium: 100% of shareholders present at
the General Meeting agreed to approve.

The Presidium was unanimously approved by the Meeting. The Chairman and
the Presidium assumed their duties and exercised the right to direct the Meeting.

6. The Secretariat

The Chairman assigned the Secretariat, consisting of the following members:

- Mr. Tran Minh Thang - Head of the Secretariat;

- Ms. Pham Thi Thu Hien - Member of the Secretariat.

The Secretariat began its duties at the Meeting.

7. Approval of the Meeting Agenda and Working Regulations at the Meeting

a) Meeting Agenda

Mr. Pham Ngoc Thanh, Chairman of the Board of Directors, presented the
proposed Agenda of the General Meeting and requested a vote of approval from the
Meeting.

Voting results: 100% of shareholders present at the meeting agreed to approve.

b) Working regulations of the Meeting

Mr. Pham Ngoc Thanh - Chairman of the Board of Directors presented the draft
Working Regulations of the Meeting and requested a vote of approval from the
- Meeting.

Voting results: 100% of shareholders present at the meeting agreed to approve.

8. Approval of the Counting Committee

Mr. Pham Ngoc Thanh - Chairman of the Board of Directors nominated the
personnel of the Vote Counting Committee for approval by the Meeting, including the
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following members:

- Mr. Do Le Nam - Head of the Vote Counting Committee;

- Ms. Luu Thi Tho - Member;

- Ms. Bui Thi Huyen Trang - Member.

Voting results: 100% of shareholders present at the meeting agreed to approve.

C. CONTENTS OF THE MEETING

I. REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

1. Report on the Company’s business performance and the Board of Directors’
activities in 2024; the Company's business plan and the Board of Directors' activities in
2025, presented by Mr. Nguyen Minh Hai - Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors.

2. Report on the activities of the Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the its
activities in 2025 were presented by Ms. Tran Thi Loan - Head of the Board of
Supervisors.

II. PROPOSALS TO THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Meeting listened to Mr. Nguyen Tran Tung, Mr. Do Viet Thanh, Ms. Cao
Thi Lan Huong and Ms. Tran Thi Loan presenting the Proposals of the BOD and the
BOS, including:

1. Proposal to approve the audited 2024 Financial Statements;

2. Proposal to approve the distribution of profits after tax in 2024 and the plan
for distribution of profits after tax in 2025;

3. Proposal to approve the list of independent auditing companies prioritized for
consideration and selection to audit the 2025 financial statements;

4. Proposal to approve the amendments and supplements to the Company Charter;

5. Proposal to approve the transfer of the registration of trading shares of Taseco
Land Investment Joint Stock Company on the UPCOM trading system to the
registration of listing shares on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange;

6. Proposal to approve the supplement the Company’s business lines;

7. Proposal on the election of members of the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors for the 2025 - 2030 term.

III. DISCUSSION AT THE MEETING

At 4:15 p.m., the General Meeting continued its proceedings with shareholder
contributions and discussions from shareholders directly attending the Meeting and
those represented by proxy regarding the Reports and Submissions of the Company’s
Board of Directors.

Regarding questions related to Taseco Land’s future business development
orientation and identification of key projects: Taseco Land’s strategy is to diversify its
project portfolio across all three real estate segments: urban real estate, industrial real
estate, and resort real estate. in order to manage and control potential risks. Regarding
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location, the company does not pursue excessive expansion but always selects projects
in prime and suitable locations, such as the Taseco Resort Da Nang project and the
Taseco Quang Binh project. For the industrial real estate segment, Taseco Land plans to
develop an additional 6 industrial parks in potential localities in the near future. In
addition, the Company also focuses on developing the post-investment real estate
management segment, such as the management and operation of apartment buildings,
offices, hotels, and the operation of industrial parks, with the goal of providing
professional and systematic customer service, while contributing to maintaining a stable
operating cash flow for the Company.

Regarding the impact of U.S. tariff policies: The Presidium assessed that industrial
real estate is among the sectors that may be affected by general tariff policies. Currently,
the Company is developing the Taseco Dong Van III Industrial Park real estate project,
which is expected to complete construction and technical infrastructure acceptance by
September 2025, thereby meeting business operation conditions and contributing
partially to revenue recognition this year. In addition, the Company retains a surplus of
inventory from several residential real estate projects, such as Project No. 4 (Thanh
Hoa), Nguyen Binh Project (Thanh Hoa), Nam Thai Project (Thai Nguyen), Long Bien
Project (Hanoi), Trung Van Project (Hanoi), and the B3-CC2B Project — Starlake Urban
Area (Hanoi), etc which are ready for business and sales activities to generate cash flow
and partially record revenue in 2025. The Board of Directors and the Board of
Management will continue to closely monitor market development and tariff policies to
ensure flexibility in project management, development, construction, and business
activities, aiming to secure the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Regarding the plan to change stock exchange listing from UPCOM to HOSE
exchange: The Presidium shared that the Company is currently preparing the required
documentation and making efforts to complete the listing transfer before November 2025.

Regarding the Company’s shareholder structure: Taseco Group is currently the
major shareholder, holding 72.5% of Taseco Land’s shares. At the same time, Taseco
Land is receiving growing interest and attention from both domestic and international
investors. The Company is planning to expand its international cooperation and seek
strategic investors to partner with in developing its diverse real estate segments.
Moreover, Taseco Land also plans to seek strategic investors through a share issuance
plan to raise new capital. All proceeds from this issuance will be used to invest in
ongoing projects and expand new developments, thereby accumulating a land fund as a
foundation for future growth. As a result, Taseco Group’s ownership in Taseco Land
will be diluted and its ownership percentage will reduce.

The Presidium also addressed, clarified, and provided satisfactory responses to
shareholders’s inquiries pertaining to the Company's business operations. The General
Meeting reached a consensus on the responses provided and raised no further objections.



IV. ELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR THE TERM 2025 - 2030

After the General Meeting heard the presentation of the Reports and Proposals, in
accordance with the agenda, the election of members of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors for the 2025-2030 term was conducted at the General Meeting.
Based on the provisions of law and the Company Charter, the Board of Directors
proposed the number of members of the Board of Directors for the 2025 - 2030 term to
be 05 members, including 01 independent member and the number of members of the
Board of Supervisors for the 2025 - 2030 term to be 03 members.

1. Vote to approve the Regulations for the election of members of the Board
of Directors and Board of Supervisors for the 2025 - 2030 term.

Mr. Pham Ngoc Thanh - Chairman of the Board of Directors requested a vote of
approval the Regulations for the election of members of the Board of Directors and
Board of Supervisors for the 2025 - 2030 term from the Meeting.

Voting results: 100% of shareholders present at the General Meeting agreed to
approve the Regulations on the election of members of the BOD and BOS for the 2025
- 2030 term. Accordingly, at this General Meeting, 05 members of the BOD (i including
01 independent member) and 03 members of the BOS will be elected.

2. Vote to approve the list of nominees and candidates for election to the BOD
and the BOS for the 2025 - 2030 term:

2.1.List of candidates for election to the position of non-independent member of
the BOD:

- Mr. Pham Ngoc Thanh;

- Mr. Nguyen Minh Hai;

- Mr. Nguyen Tran Tung;

- Mr. Do Viet Thanh.

2.2.List of candidates for election to the position of independent member of
the BOD:

- Mr. Le Duc Long.

2.3.List of candidates for election to the position of member of the BOS:

- Ms. Tran Thi Loan;

- Mr. Dang Xuan Hien ;

- Ms. Luu Thi Quynh Giang .

Mr. Pham Ngoc Thanh - Chairman of the Board of Directors requested a vote of
approval from the Meeting.



Voting results: 100% of shareholders present at the meeting agreed to approve.
IV. VOTING TO APPROVE MEETING CONTENTS

1. Updated the Report on Verification of Shareholder Eligibility as of the Voting
session:

At the time of 5:15 p.m., there was a total of 115 people who are shareholders
and authorized representatives of shareholders attending the Meeting, representing
299,133,231 shares with voting rights at the General Meeting.

Total number of votes of shareholders attending the meeting: 299,133,231 votes.

2. Mr. Do Le Nam - Head of the Vote Counting Committee presented the
instructions to vote at the Meeting.

3. The Meeting proceeded to vote.
V. RESULTS OF VOTING ON MEETING CONTENTS
1. Total number of ballots issued: 115 represents 299,133,231 votes.

2. Total number of ballots collected: 108 represents 299,110,864 votes.
3. Total number of uncollected ballots: 07 represents 22,367 votes.

4. Total number of shares used as basis for calculating voting ratio: 299,110,864
shares, representing 299,110,864 votes.

The voting results were as follows:
1. Approval of the report on the Company's business performance and the
Board of Directors' activities in 2024; the Company's business plan and the

Board of Directors' activities in 2025 (according to the Report No. 01/2025/BC-
HDOT dated March 28, 2025 attached).

1. Business results indicators in 2024.

Indicator 2024 Plan 2024 Actual Execution
(billion VND) | (billion VND) rate (%)
Consolidated revenue 3,040.0 1,684.5 55.4%
Consolidated profit before tax 614.0 875.6 142.6%
Consolidated profit after tax 475.0 685.0 144.2%
2. Some indicators of the 2025 production and business plan
No. Indicator (bfli?;nzgg\?D )

1 Consolidated revenue 4,332.0

2 | Consolidated profit before tax 686.0

3 | Consolidated profit after tax 536.0

4 | Expected dividend rate 15%

3. Income Budget Plan for 2025 of the Board of Directors.

a) Remuneration in 2025 of the Board of Directors.
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No. Position Quantity Salarys Nlll;lfbel‘ Tota)
month (VND) o (VND)
1 gga]:i)m‘a“ of the) g 15,000,000 12 | 180,000,000
2 glceBOCDhainnan off 10,000,000 12 | 240,000,000
3 | Member of the BOD | 02 7000,000| 12 | 168,000,000
Total remuneration 588,000,000

Note: Remuneration for members of the Board of Directors is included in the

Company's business operating expenses .

b) Salary and bonuses of Executive Board members in 2025 will be paid in
accordance with the Company's salary, bonus, and allowance policy for employees.

c¢) Bonus for the Board of Directors in 2025 will be allocated from the
company’s reward and welfare fund and shall not exceed the percentage approved by
the General Meeting of Shareholders.

4. Authorization for the Company's Board of Directors :

Based on the actual production and business activities of the Company and its
member companies in 2025 and the market situation, the Board of Directors decided to
adjust 2025 production and business plan of the Company.

The Board of Directors is responsible for reporting and explaining to
shareholders the adjusted contents at the next Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

Voting results:
Total number of votes : 299,110,864 votes . Of which:
- Voting method: Cast ballots in the ballot box
- Total valid votes: 299,090,864 votes; Number of invalid votes: 20,000 votes
accounting for 0.007%,; Number of approval votes: 299,090,864 votes, accounting for
99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting; The number
of Disapproval votes: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the votes of shareholders attending
and voting at the meeting; Number of abstention votes: ( votes, accounting for 0%
Number of votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.

2. Approval of the Report on the activities of the Board of Supervisors in
2024 and the its activities in 2025 (according to the Report No. 01/2025/BC-BKS
dated March 28, 2025 attached).

In which the 2025 remuneration plan of Board of Supervisors approved as

follows:
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” : Salary/ Humior Total
No. Position Quantity month (VND) of (VND)
months
1 | Head of the BOS 01 5,000,000 12 60,000,000
2 | Member of the BOS 02 3,000,000 12 72,000,000
Total remuneration 132,000,000

Note: Remuneration for members of the Board of Supervisors is included in the

Company's business operating expenses.

Voting results:
Total number of votes : 299,110,864 votes . Of which:
- Voting method: Cast ballots in the ballot box
- Total valid votes: 299,090,864 votes; Number of invalid votes: 20,000 votes
accounting for 0.007%, Number of approval votes: 299,090,864 votes, accounting Jor
99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting; The number
of Disapproval votes: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the votes of shareholders attending
and voting at the meeting; Number of abstention votes: ( votes, accounting for 0%
Number of votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.
3. Approval of the 2024 Audited Financial Statements (4ccording to the
Proposal No. 01/2025/TTr-HPQT dated March 28, 2025 attached)

Voting results: Y/
Total number of votes : 299,110,864 votes . Of which: hy

- Voting method: Cast ballots in the ballot box . ([

- Total valid votes: 299,090,864 votes; Number of invalid votes: 20,000 votes ’-3@\
accounting for 0.007%; Number of approval votes: 299,090,864 votes, accounting for %

99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting; The number
of Disapproval votes: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the votes of shareholders attending
and voting at the meeting; Number of abstention votes: 0 votes, accounting for 0%
Number of votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.

4. Approval of the distribution of profits after tax in 2024 and the plan for
distribution of profits after tax in 2025.

a) Report on profit distribution results in 2024

No. Indicator Amount ( VND )
& Figures on the separate financial statements of parent
company
1 Accumulated retained earnings up to the end of 2023 529,982,551,040
2 | Profit after corporate income tax in 2024 775,013,562,285
Payment of cash dividends in 2023, payment made in
3 September 2024 (rate of 15% on capital of VND 2.970 O RINR00.000




No. Indicator Amount ( VND)
billion)
4 Deduction of reward and welfare funds 25,977,101,036
Accumulated undistributed profit after tax as of
5 | December 31, 2024 (5=1+2-3-4) §33,519,012,289
B | Figures on consolidated financial statements
1 Accumulated undistributed profit after tax by the end of 447,780,350,052
2023
2 | Profit after tax in 2024, of which: 685,099,930,448
a | Parent Company's profit after tax in 2024 664,816,258,791
b Profit afier tax of non-controlling interests 20,283,691,051
Payment of cash dividends in 2023, payment made in
3 September 2024 (rate of 15% on capital of VND 2,970 445,500,000,000
billion)
4 Adjusting consolidation entries 6,549,914
5 Deduction of reward and welfare funds (4%) 27,157,101,036
Accumulated undistributed profit after tax until
6 | 31/12/2024 (6=1+2 (a)-3+4-5) 639946057721 |
b) The 2024 profit distribution 7
0}
No. Indicator Amount (VND) Sf;
. e . \
Payment of cash dividends in 2024 (rate of 15% on — N
1| capital of VND 3,118.5 billion) 467, 71,000000 | &
Retained earnings carried over to 2025 on Separate
2| Financial Statements (IL.2=1.A.5-IL.1) 363,101,250
Retained earnings carried over to 2025 on Consolidated
3 | Financial Statements (I.3=LB.6-IL.1) L72,171,057,721
¢) Profit distribution plan 2025
No. Indicator Rate /Amount
1 Profit after tax in 2025 on Separate Financial 533,000,000,000 VND
Statements
’ Profit after tax in 2025 on Consolidated Financial 536,000,000,000 VND
Statements
3 | Deduction of reward and welfare funds Up to 3%
4 Expected dividend ratio 15%
d) Implementation:



- Assign the Board of Directors to organize the payment of dividends for 2024
according to the rate approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Based on the actual production and business activities of the Company and its
member companies in 2025 and the market situation, within the ratio approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors is authorized to decide: (i)
advance payment of dividends for 2025; (ii) allocate and use the reward and welfare fund.

- The Board of Directors is responsible for reporting and explaining the above
contents to shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Voting results:
Total number of votes : 299,110,864 votes . Of which:
- Voting method: Cast ballots in the ballot box
- Total valid votes: 299,090,864 votes; Number of invalid votes: 20,000 votes
accounting for 0.007%; Number of approval votes: 299,090,864 votes, accounting for
99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting; The number
of Disapproval votes: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the votes of shareholders attending
and voting at the meeting; Number of abstention votes: 0 votes, accounting for 0%
Number of votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.
5. Approval of the list of independent auditing companies prioritized for
consideration and selection to audit the 2025 financial statements.
a) List of selected auditing companies
- Emnst & Young Vietnam Company Limited.
- Deloitte Vietnam Company Limited (Deloitte).
- PricewaterhouseCoopers Vietnam Company Limited (PWC VN) .
- KPMG Vietnam Company Limited.
- A&C Auditing and Consulting Company Limited.
- AASC Auditing Company Limited.
b) Authorize the Board of Directors to consider and decide to select one of the
companies mentioned above to audit the Company's 2025 Financial Statements.
Voting results:
Total number of votes : 299,110,864 votes . Of which:
- Voting method: Cast ballots in the ballot box
- Total valid votes: 299,090,864 votes;, Number of invalid votes: 20,000 votes
accounting for 0.007%,; Number of approval vores: 299,090,864 votes, accounting for
99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting; The number
of Disapproval votes: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the votes of shareholders attending
and voting at the meeting; Number of abstention votes: 0 votes, accounting for 0%
Number of votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.
6. Approval of amendments and supplements to the Company Charter
(according to the content of Submission No. 03/2025/TTr-HPQOT dated March 28,
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2025 attached).
Voting results:
Total number of votes : 299,110,864 votes . Of which:
- Voting method: Cast ballots in the ballot box
- Total valid votes: 299,090,864 votes; Number of invalid votes: 20,000 votes
accounting for 0.007%, Number of approval votes: 299,090,864 votes, accounting for
99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting, The number
of Disapproval votes: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the votes of shareholders attending
and voting at the meeting; Number of abstention votes: 0 votes, accounting for 0%
Number of votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.

7. Approval of the transfer of the registration of trading shares of Taseco
Land Investment Joint Stock Company on the UPCOM trading system to the
registration of listing shares on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange
(“HOSE”)

a) Register for the listing of TAL shares on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange and
delist TAL shares from the UPCOM trading system of the Hanoi Stock Exchange.

b) Ticker: TAL.
¢) Type of securities: Common share.
d) Par value: 10.000 VND/share.

¢) Number of shares registered for listing: All shares issued by the Company as of the
time of registration for listing at the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange.

f) Expected time to submit listing registration documents: In 2025.
g) Authorization to the Board of Directors:

- Based on the market situation and production and business activities, the Board of
Directors decides the time to register for stock listing ‘at HOSE when the Company meets
the conditions for stock listing according to the provisions of law.

- Decide and direct relevant departments to carry out necessary procedures,
complete the application for listing TAL shares at the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange
as well as the procedure for transferring TAL shares from UPCOM to HOSE, including
but not limited to: registering the listing of shares on HOSE, delisting shares from
UPCOM, finalizing the shareholder list at the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation for the transfer stock exchange, selecting the timing and offering price for the
first trading day on HOSE.

- Carry out other legal procedures as required by relevant authorities to complete
the transfer from UPCOM to HOSE.

Voting results:
Total number of votes * 299.110.864 votes . Of which:



- Voting method: Cast ballots in the ballot box
- Total valid votes: 299,090,864 votes; Number of invalid votes: 20,000 votes
accounting for 0.007%; Number of approval votes: 299,090,864 votes, accounting for
99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting; The number
of Disapproval votes: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the votes of shareholders attending
and voting at the meeting; Number of abstention votes: 0 votes, accounting for 0%
Number of votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.
8. Approval of the supplement the Company's business lines
a) The Company's business lines as follows.

No. Additional business name Code
1 | Preschool education 8511
2 | Preschool education 8512
3 | Primary education 8521
4 | Lower secondary education 8522
5 | Upper secondary education 8523
6 | Basic-level training 8531
7 | Intermediate-level training 8532
8 | College-level training 8533
9 | University training 8541
10 | Master training 8542
11 | Doctoral training 8543
12 | Sports and recreation education 8551
13 | Cultural education 8552
14 | Other education not elsewhere classified 8559
15 | Educational support activities 8560
16 | Hospital and health station activities 8610
17 | Medical and dental practice activities 8620
18 | Preventive medicine activities 8691
19 | Orthopedic and rehabilitation centers 8692
20 | Other human health activities not elsewhere classified 8699

) Amendment and supplement to the Company Charter.
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Amend and supplement Clause 1, Article 4 on business lines in the Company
Charter corresponding to the content stated in Point a) above.

¢) Implementation.

Assigning/authorizing the General Director - Legal Representative of the
Company to organize and implement tasks related to changing business registration
contents, including but not limited to the following tasks:

- Carry out procedures related to adding business lines at the competent Business
Registration Authority, including adjusting detailed content within the scope of business
lines approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Carry out other procedures related to adding business lines according to the
provisions of law.

Voting results:

Total number of votes : 299,110,864 votes . Of which:

- Voting method: Cast ballots in the ballot box

- Total valid votes: 299,090,864 votes; Number of invalid votes: 20,000 votes
accounting for 0.007%,; Number of approval votes: 299,090,864 votes, accounting for
99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting; The number
of Disapproval votes: 0 votes, accounting for 0% of the votes of shareholders attending
and voting at the meeting; Number of abstention votes: ( votes, accounting for 0%
Number of votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.

9. Election of non-independent members of the Board of Directors for the
2025 - 2030 term by cumulative voting. Election results:

— Total number of ballots issued: 115 represents 299,133,231 votes.

— Total number of ballots collected: 108 represents 299,110,864 votes.

— Total number of uncollected ballots: 7 represents 22,367 votes.

— Total number of shares used as basis for calculating voting ratio: 299,110,864
shares, representing 299,110,864 votes. (number of shares participating and

voting at the General Meeting up to the time of voting)

No. | Elected Board of Directors candidates vlj':::::gb:i;;fs Ratio (%)
1| Pham Ngoc Thanh 299,306,264 100.065%
2 | Nguyen Minh Hai 299,019,064 99.969%
3 | Nguyen Tran Tung 299,019,064 99.969%
4 | Do Viet Thanh

299,019,064 99.969%
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10. Election of independent members of the Board of Directors for the 2025
- 2030 term by cumulative voting. Election results:

Number of
No. | Elected Board of Directors candidates lfm e.r £ Ratio (%)
voting rights
1 | Le Duc Long 297,899,352 99.595%

11. Election of members of the Board of Supervisors for the 2025 - 2030
term by cumulative voting. Election results.
— Total number of ballots issued: 115 represents 299,133,231 votes.

— Total number of ballots collected: 107 represents 299,110,863 votes.

—  Total number of uncollected ballots: 8 represents 22,368 votes.

—  Total number of shares used as basis for calculating voting ratio: 299,110,863
shares, representing 299,110,863 votes. (number of shares participating and

voting at the General Meeting up to the time of voting)

Elected Board of Supervisors Number of .
No. . . ) Ratio
candidates voting rights
1| Tran Thi Loan 299,025,063 99.971%
2 | Dang Xuan Hien 299,222,463 100.037%
3 | Luu Thi Quynh Giang 299,025,063 99.971%

Based on the vote counting results. the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company approved the

following contents:

1. Report on the Company's business performance and the Board of Directors' activities
in 2024; the Company's business plan and the Board of Directors' activities in 2025.

Account for 99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.

2. Report on the activities of the Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the its
activities in 2025

Account for 99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.
3. The 2024 Audited Financial Statements
Account for 99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the

meeting.

4. The proposal on the distribution of profits after tax in 2024 and the plan for
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distribution of profits after tax in 2025.
Account for 99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.

5. Proposal to approve the list of independent auditing companies prioritized for
consideration and selection to audit the 2025 financial statements

Account for 99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.
6. Proposal to approve the amendments and supplements to the Company Charter
Account for 99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.

7. Proposal to approve the transfer of the registration of trading shares of Taseco
Land Investment Joint Stock Company on the UPCOM trading system to the
registration of listing shares on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange

Account for 99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.
8. Proposal to approve the supplement the Company's business lines.
Account for 99.993% of the votes of shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.

9. The election results of the Board of Directors for the 2025 - 2030 term.
accordingly. the Board of Directors members include:

- Mr. Pham Ngoc Thanh Member of the BOD;
- Mr. Nguyen Minh Hai Member of the BOD;
- Mr. Nguyen Tran Tung Member of the BOD;
- Mr. Do Viet Thanh Member of the BOD;
- Mr. Le Duc Long Independent member of the BOD.

The newly elected members of the Board of Directors will hold their first
meeting to elect the Chairman of the Board of Directors for the 2025-2030 term as
prescribed.

10. The election results of the Board of Supervisors for the 2025 - 2030 term.
accordingly. the Board of Supervisors members include:

- Ms. Tran Thi Loan Member of the BOS;
- Mr. Dang Xuan Hien . Member of the BOS;
- Ms. Luu Thi Quynh Giang Member of the BOS.

The newly elected members of the Board of Supervisors will hold their first
meeting to elect the Head of the Board of Supervisors for the 2025-2030 term as
prescribed.

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

The minutes were fullv and honestly recorded by the Secretariat of the Meeting
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and read to the entire Meeting.

The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the Minutes of the meeting:
100% of the total votes of all shareholders attending and voting at the meeting
approved.

This Meeting Minutes is made in 02 (Two) copies with the same legal validity. The
Meeting ended at 6: 15p.m of the same day.

ON BEHALF OF THE
SECRETARIAT
HEAD

Tran Minh Thang Pham Ngoc Thanh
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,4; Régister delegates to attend the General Meeting;

elcoming and registering shareholders/shareholders’ representatives to

attend the General Meeting;

Distribute documents for the General Meeting.

Statement of reasons and introduction of delegates
Approval of the report on shareholder eligibility verification
Introduction of the Chairman of the Meeting and approval of the Presidium

15:00 ~15:15 | - Appointment of the Secretariat of the Meeting
- Approval of the Meeting’s Agenda
- Approval of the Meeting's operating regulations
- Election of the Vote-Counting Committee
- Presentation of Reports:
v Report on the Company's business performance and the Board of Directors'
activities in 2024; the Company's business plan and the Board of Directors'
activities in 2025;
v Report on the Board of Supervisors' activities in 2024 and the 2025 operation
plan. .
- Presentation of the Proposals:
v Proposal for approval the audited 2024 Financial Statements:
v Proposal on the Company's 2024 afier-tax profit distribution plan and 2025
15:15 ~ 16:10 TR g
after-tax profit distribution plan;
v Proposal for approval the list of independent auditing companies to audit the
2025 Financial Statements;
V' Proposal on amending and supplementing the Company Charter;
v Proposal for approval the plan to transfer the Company's stock trading
registration on the UPCOM trading system to stock listing registration at the
Hochiminh Stock Exchange;
v Proposal on supplementing the Company's business lines;
v Proposal on the election of members of the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors for the 2025 - 2030 term.
- Discussion on the contents of the Reports and Proposal;
16:10 ~ 16:50 | - Approval of the Regulations on election of members of the Board of Directors
' ' and Board of Supervisors for the 2025-2030 term and finalization of the
candidate list.
- Voting instructions for the approval of the Reports, Proposals, and the election
16:50 ~ 17:05 of lITe Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors for the 2025 - 2030 term;
| ~ | - Voting on the Reports, Proposals, and the election of the Board of Directors
and the Board of Supervisors for the 2025-2030 term.
17:05~17:25 | - Break, vote counting.
17:25~17:35 | - Announcement of vote counting results.
17:35~17:45 | - Approval of the Minutes of the Meeting and Closing of the Meeting.




TASECO LAND INVESTMENT  THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Hanoi, April 1, 2025

OPERATING REGULATIONS
2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020, as amended by Law No. 03/2022/QH 15,
and its guiding documents;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities 2019, as amended by Law No. 56/2024/0H 15,
and its guiding documents;

Pursuant to the Charter of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company”).

CHAPTER I
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 1. Scope and Subjects of application

1. This Regulation applies to the organization of the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders (hereinafter referred to as the “Meeting™) of Taseco Land Investment
Joint Stock Company.

2. This Regulation specifically stipulates the rights and obligations of
Shareholders, Authorized Representatives attending the Meeting, and other participants;

as well as the conditions and procedures for conducting the Meeting.
3. Shareholders and Authorized Representatives attending the Meeting
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “Shareholders™), along with other participants,

are responsible for strictly complying with the provisions in this Regulation.

CHAPTER II
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTICIPANTS IN THE MEETING

Article 2. Rights and Obligations of Shareholders or Authorized

Representatives

1. All shareholders of the Company whose names are recorded on the shareholder
list finalized by the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation as of
March 26. 2025. are entitled to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders. Each
common share carries one vote.

2. Shareholders entitled to attend the Meeting shall have all rights and obligations



as prescribed by law and the Company’s Charter.

3. Shareholders attending the Meeting must bring their Citizen Identification
Card/Passport and Power of Attorney (in case of authorization) to present to the
Shareholder Eligibility Verification Committee in order to receive voting ballots, voting
cards, and election ballots.

4. Shareholders arriving late but before the Meeting concludes are allowed to
register upon arrival and may participate and vote immediately. The Chairman of the
Meeting is not obliged to pause the Meeting to accommodate late registration, and the
validity of the previously voted matters shall remain unaffected.

5. During the Meeting, participating shareholders must follow the instructions of

the Chairman, maintain a civil and respectful demeanor, and refrain from causing
disorder.

Article 3. Rights and Obligations of the Shareholder Eligibility Verification
Committee and the Vote Counting Committee

1. The Shareholder Eligibility Verification Committee is responsible for verifying
the eligibility of shareholders attending the Meeting and reporting the results.

2.The Vote Counting Committee is responsible for recording shareholders’ voting
results on all matters presented at the Meeting, compiling the results, and reporting them
for public announcement during the Meeting.

Article 4. Rights and Obligations of the Presidium of the General Meeting of
Shareholders

1. To preside over and conduct the activities of the Meeting according to the
approved agenda.

2. To present reports, proposals, and regulations at the Meeting and to lead
discussions.

3. To respond to matters included in the approved agenda of the Meeting.

4. To present drafts and conclusions on issues to be voted on by the Meeting.

5. To conduct the Meeting in a lawful, orderly manner that reflects the will of the
majority of participating shareholders.

Article 5. Responsibilities of the Secretariat

The Secretariat is responsible for preparing the Minutes of the Meeting and

performing support tasks as assigned by the Chairman and the Presidium. The
Secretariat shall be appointed by the Chairman.
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CHAPTER III
PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING THE MEETING

Article 6. Conditions for Convening the Meeting

1. The Meeting shall be convened when the attending shareholders represent more
than 50% of the total voting shares as recorded in the finalized list of shareholders
eligible to attend the Meeting. In the event that, after 30 minutes from the scheduled
opening time indicated in the agenda sent to shareholders, the registered shareholders
do not represent more than 50% of the total voting shares, the Meeting shall be
considered not validly convened.

2. If the Meeting does not meet the conditions prescribed above, the convening of
subsequent Meetings shall comply with the provisions of the Company’s Charter and
the current Law on Enterprises.

Article 7. Conduction and Approval of the Meeting’s Resolutions

1. The Meeting shall proceed according to the approved agenda.

2. The Meeting shall discuss and vote on each agenda item in the manner provided
in this Regulation.

3. All attending shareholders are entitled to vote on matters under the authority of
the General Meeting of Shareholders (except in cases specified in Clause 3, Clause 4,
Article 167 of the Law on Enterprises 2020). Voting rights correspond to the total
number of shares owned and/or represented.

4. A resolution shall be deemed approved if more than 50% of the total votes of
the attending and voting shareholders vote in favor, unless otherwise specified in Clause
21.4, Article 21 of the Company’s Charter or Clause 1, Article 148 of the Law on
Enterprises 2020, in which case approval requires at least 65% of the total votes of the
attending and voting shareholders.

Article 8. Voting Procedures for Resolutions at the General Meeting of
Shareholders

Voting on matters at the Meeting shall, depending on the situation, be conducted
using the following methods:

1. Voting by ballot
a) The matters to be voted on, as stated in the Ballot, shall be voted by the

Shareholder by ticking 01 (one) of the 03 (three) voting options (Approve, Disapprove
. or Abstain).

b) Ballots shall be cast according to the following principles:



- Voting begins upon instruction by the Chairman or Head of the Vote Counting
Cominittee and ends when the last shareholder casts their ballot into the box or 15
minutes after voting begins, whichever comes first;

- Vote counting shall begin immediately after the voting period ends.

¢) Invalid ballots shall not be counted. A ballot is considered invalid if it:

- Not being an official ballot issued by the Company, and does not bear the
Company’s seal;

- Being torn, contains additional information or symbols that prevent the Vote
unting Committee from determining the voter’s intention;

- Does not contain the full name and signature of the shareholder/authorized
representative.

- The ballot is submitted to the Vote Counting Committee after the Chairman
of the General Meeting or the Head of the Vote Counting Committee has declared the
end of the voting session.

d) The voting content shall be deemed invalid in the following cases:

- The voting content is crossed out, erased, or altered (without affecting other
voting contents on the same ballot);

- Multiple voting options are selected for the same voting content;
- None of the three voting boxes (Approve, Disapprove, or Abstain) is selected;

The validity of one voting content on the ballot is assessed independently from
others; an invalid vote for one content does not affect the validity of votes on others.

e) If a shareholder makes an error while completing their ballot but has not yet
cast it and the voting period has not ended, they may directly contact the Head of the
Vote Counting Committee to request a replacement ballot to ensure their rights.

2. Voting for the election members of the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors shall be conducted in accordance with a separate regulation of voting for
members of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors approved at the Meeting.

3. Direct voting

Direct voting applies in cases where voting by ballot is not used as per Clause
1 of this Article.

In the case of direct voting at the Meeting, shareholders shall vote on each
matter requiring approval by raising the Voting Card (Approve / Disapprove / Abstain)
for each issue, or by other methods as instructed by the Presidium. The Vote Counting
Committee shall record the number of votes in approval, disapproval and abstention,
and announce the voting results before the General Meeting. Any shareholder who raises
the Voting Card more than once in the three voting rounds (Approve/ Disapprove/
Abstain) for a issue shall have votes deemed invalid.

1=



Article 9. Vote Counting Regulations for Voting by Ballot

1. The Vote Counting Committee shall conduct the vote counting process as
follows:

a) The Vote Counting Committee shall work in a separate room/area;

b) The Committee may use electronic technical means to assist in the vote
counting process;

c) Verify the validity of each ballot;

d) Review each ballot one by one and record the results;

e) Calculate and exclude invalid votes cast by sharcholders related to specific
matters (if applicable on voting contents);

f) All ballots shall be handed over to the Head of the Vote Counting Committee.

2. Preparation and Announcement of the Vote Counting Report:

a) Upon completion of vote counting, the Vote Counting Committee shall
prepare the Vote Counting Report.

b) The Vote Counting Report must include the following information:

- Time and venue of the vote counting;

- Members of the Vote Counting Committee;

- Total number of shareholders attending the Meeting;

- Total number of shareholders who cast votes:

- Number and percentage of valid and invalid votes:

- Number and percentage of votes for each matter: The reportes must be signed

by all members of the Vote Counting Commitice.
Article 10. Shareholder make comments at the Meeting

Shareholders desiring to make comments or participate in discussion shall raise
their hand or Voting Card to be invited by the Presidium to speak. For convenience in
recording into the Minutes, upon being invited, shareholders shall state their name and
present their opinions briefly, avoiding repetition. Aliernatively, shareholders may write
their comments on the Discussion Form and submit it to the Presidium.

Article 11. Meeting Minutes and Resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders

All proceedings of the Meeting shall be recorded by the Secretariat in the Meeting
Minutes. The Minutes shall be read aloud and approved before the Meeting is closed

Based on the contents of the Minutes, the Chairpman, on behalf of the 2025 Annual

General Meeting of Shareholders, shall sign and issue the Resolution in accordance with
regulations.
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Article 12. Implementation Provision

This Regulation shall take effect immediately upon approval by the General
Meeting of Shareholders. v

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
‘ Chairman

v/ ¢l

U
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Pham Ngoc Thanh




TASECO LAND INVESTMENT THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

HaNoi, April .27, 2025

REGULATIONS ON THE ELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR
THE 2025-2030 TERM

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020, as amended and supplemented by Law
No. 03/2022/QH135, and its guiding documents;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities 2019, as amended and supplemented by Law

No. 56/2024/QH135, and its guiding documents,

Pursuant to the Charter of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

(hereinafier referred to as the “Company”).

The General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company (hereinafter referred to as
the “GMS”) shall conduct the election of members of the Board of Directors (hereinafter
referred to as the “BOD”) and members of the Board of Supervisors (hereinafter referred

to as the “BOS”) according to the following regulations:

Article 1. Principles and Subjects of the Election

1. Election Principles:

a) The election shall comply with the law, the Company’s Charter, and this
Regulation to ensure democracy and protect the legitimate rights of all shareholders;

b) The election shall be conducted via cumulative voting.

2. Eligible Voters: Shareholders whose names are on the list of shareholders
compiled by the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation as of March

26, 2025, and the authorized representative attending the Meeting (hereinafter referred
to as the “Shareholder™)

Article 2. Number and Criteria of Elected BOD Members
1. Number of Elected BOD Members: 05 members, including 01 independent

member.
2. Structure of the BOD: Ensure that at least one-third (1/3) of the total number of
Board members are non-executive members and that there is at least one independent member

3. Standards and Conditions for elected BOD members must comply with the



Enterprise Law and the Company Charter, specifically:

a) Possesses full legal capacity and is not subject to the prohibitions on enterprise
management as stipulated in Clause 2, Article 17 of the Law on Enterprises:

b) Possess professional qualifications and experience in business management;
not necessarily a shareholder unless otherwise stated in the Charter;

¢) A member of the Company’s BOD may concurrently serve as a member of the
BOD of no more than five (05) other companies ;

d) Not required to be a shareholder of the Company.
4. Standards for Independent BOD Members:

a) Must qualify all criteria in Clause 2 of this Article;

b) Must not be employed by the Company, its parent company, or subsidiaries,
and must not have worked at those entities in the past 03 consecutive years;

¢) Must not be receiving salaries or remuneration from the Company, except for
allowances entitled to BOD members;

d) Must not have a spouse, biological or adoptive father, biological or adoptive
mother, biological or adoptive child, adoptive child, sibling, is a major shareholder of
the Company; is a manager of the Company or a subsidiary of the Company;

e) Must not directly or indirectly own at least 1% of the total voting shares of the
Company:

f) Must not have served as a BOD or BOS members in the past 05 consecutive
years, unless reappointed for two consecutive terms.

Article 3. Number and Criteria of Elected BOS Members

1. Number of Elected BOS Members: 03 members.
2. Standards and Conditions must comply with the Enterprise Law and the
Company’s Charter, specifically:

a) Possesses full legal capacity and is not subject to the prohibitions on enterprise
management as stipulated in Clause 2, Article 17 of the Law on Enterprises;

b) Trained in economics, finance, accounting, auditing, law, business
administration, or other fields relevant to the Company's operations;

¢) No familial relationship with BOD members, General Director, or other senior
managers;

d) Not working in the Company's accounting or finance departments;

e) Not members or employees of any independent audit firm auditing the
Company’s financial statements in the past 03 years;

f) Not holding managerial positions in the Company and not necessarily a
shareholder or employee of the Company.
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Article 4. Right to Nominate and Stand for Election to the BOD

1. Shareholders holding voting shares may nominate or combine their voting
rights to nominate BOD candidates. The number of candidates a group may nominate
depends on the total number of elected positions approved by the GMS and their
shareholding percentage. Shareholder or group of shareholders owning shares (as of the
shareholder list closing date established by the Vietnam Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation on March 26, 2025):

a) From 5% to less than10% have the right to nominate up to one (01) candidate;

b) From 10% to less than 30% have the right to nominate: up to two (02)
candidates;

¢) From 30% to less than50% have the right to nominate up to three (03)
candidates;

d) From50% and abover have the right to nominatea full number of candidates.

2. If the number of the BOD candidates is still insufficient, the incumbent BOD
may nominate or organize additional nominations per Company rules. All nominations
must be disclosed before the GMS voting session.

Article 5. Right to Nominate and Stand for Election to the BOS

1. Shareholders holding voting shares may nominate or combinetheir voting
rights r to nominate BOScandidates. The number of candidates a group may nominate
depends on the total number of elected positions approved by the GMSto be elected and
their shareholding percentage. Shareholder or group of shareholders owning shares ( as
of the shareholder list closing date established by the Vietnam Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation on March 26, 2025):

a) From 5% to less than 10% s have the right to nominate up to one (01)
candidate;

b) From 10% to less than 30%s: have the right to nominate up to two (02)
candidates;

c¢) From 30% or more: may nominate a full number of candidates.;

2. Ift the number of the BOS candidates nominated is still insufficient, the incumbent
BOS may nominate additional candidates or organize nominations according to the
mechanism stipulated in the Company Charter. This nomination mechanism by the
incumbent BOS must be clearly disclosed and approved by the GMS prior to election.

Article 6. Application Dossier for Nomination or Candidacy for theBOD and BOS
1. The application dossier for candidacy/nomination includes:
a) Original Nomination or Candidacy Form (as per template);

b) Original Curriculum Vitae completed by the candidate (as per template):



¢) Certified copy of ID card/Passport and academic qualifications;
d) Original Power of Attorney for nomination (if applicable).
9 The nomination/candidacy dossier must be submitted to the Company by

12:00 on April 10, 2025 at the following address: 1st Floor, Building NO2-T1,
Diplomatic Corps Area, Xuan Tao Street, Xuan Tao Ward, Bac Tu Liem District, Hanoi.

Article 7. Voting Method

1. Voting for BOD and BOS members is conducted via cumulative voting. Each
Shareholder has a number of voting rights equal to the number of shares held multiplied
by the number of BOD (04 Non-independent members and 01 independent member of
BOD ) or BOS (03 members) positions to be elected.

2. Shareholders may allocate all or part of their votes to one or more candidates,
provided the total votes cast do not exceed their total voting rights.

Example for BOD vofing:
A shareholder holding 1,000 shares will have (i) 4,000 votes to elect non-
independent members of BOD and (ii) 1,000 votes to elect independent member of BOD;

He/ She may allocate all 4,000 votes to one candidate or split the votes among multiple
for non-independent members of BOD , as long as the total does not exceed 4,000.

Similar, He/ She may allocate all 1,000 votes to one candidate or split the votes
among multiple for independent members of BOD, as long as the total does not exceed
1,000 for the case of electing independent members of the BOD.

Example for BOS voting:
A shareholder holding 1,000 shares will have 3,000 votes ;.

He/ She may allocate all 3,000 votes to one candidate or split the votes among
multiple candidates, as long as the total does not exceed 3,000.

Article 8. Voting Procedure

1. Ballots

Each Shareholder with voting rights shall be provided by the Company with one
Ballot. The Ballot shall indicate the Shareholder’s full name, legal identification

number, the number of votes corresponding to the number of shares owned or
represented, and the names of the candidates being elected.

2. Ballots Requirements
2.1. Valid Ballots must:
a) Be issued by the Company:

-
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¢) Include the signature and full name of the shareholder/authorized representative;

d) Not be torn, erased, or altered.

2.2. Invalid Ballots include those that:

a) Are not issued by the Company;

b) Does not bear the Company’s official seal;

c) Are torn, altered, or corrected;

d) Lack signature/full name of shareholder/representative;

¢) Contain unauthorized marks or symbols that prevent the Counting Committee
from identifying the Shareholder's voting intention;

f) The total number of votes cast for candidates exceeds the total number of votes
held by the Shareholder

¢) The number of candidates voted for exceeds the number of the BOD or the BOS
members approved by the General Meeting.

h) The ballot is submitted to the Vote Counting Committee after the Chairman of
the General Meeting or the Head of the Counting Committee has declared the voting
period closed.

Invalid ballots will not be counted in the election results.
2.3. Ballot Completion Instructions:

a) Shareholders may aliocate votes to one or muitiple candidates, but the total
number of votes allocated must not exceed the number of the BOD or the BOS members
to be elected as approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS). Sharehoiders
may also choose not to vote for any candidate.

b) Instructions for Completing the Ballot:

- Shareholders may allocate all votes to one or several candidates, provided that
the total votes cast do not exceed the number of BOD or BOS members to be elected as
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders, using one of the following two
methods:

+ Method 1: Shareholders mark “X” or “N” in the blank box under the “Equal
cumulative voting” column corresponding to the selected candidate(s). The total votes
of the shareholder will be evenly distributed among the selected candidates, rounded
down to the nearest whole number. Any remaining fractional votes will be disregarded.

+ Method 2: Shareholders specify the exact number of votes in the blank box under
the “Number of voting rights” column corresponding to each selected candidate. The

total number of votes cast must not exceed the shareholder’s total voting rights.



- In case a shareholder marks both the “Equal cumulative voting” box and
specifies a number in the “Number of voting rights” box, the votes for that candidate
will be counted based on the number specified in the “Number of veoting rights” box.

- Ifashareholder does not wish to vote for any candidate, they may either leave
the boxes blank or enter “0” in the “Number of voting rights” column corresponding
to each candidate.

2.4. In the event a Shareholder makes an error while filling out the ballot (provided
the ballot has not yet been placed into the ballot box), they have the right to directly
contact the Head of the Vote Counting Committee to request a new ballot to ensure their

voting rights are protected.
Article 9. Principles for Voting on Election of BOD and BOS Members

1. The Counting Committee shall prepare ballot boxes for the election of BOD
and BOS members and inspect the ballot boxes in the presence of Shareholders.

2. Voting shall commence upon instruction from the Chairman of the General
Meeting or the Head of the Counting Committee and shall conclude either: when the
last shareholder casts their vote into the ballot box, or after 15 minutes from the start of
voting, whichever occurs first.

3. Vote counting shall be conducted immediately after voting ends.

4. The Head of the Counting Committee shall prepare a written record of the vote
counting results and announce them at the General Meeting.

Article 10. Election Principles for BOD and BOS Members

1. Candidates elected as members of the BOD or BOS shall be those eceiving the
highest number of votes in descending order, starting from the candidate with the most
votes until all required positions are filled. For members of BOD, it will be determined
according to each type of Board member (non-independent members of BOD and
independent member. of BOD).

2. Inthe event two (02) or more candidates receive the same highest number of
votes, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall conduct a re-vote among the tied
candidates.

Article 11. Announcement of Vote Counting Results

The vote counting report and election results must be announced by the Vote
Counting Committee at the General Meeting. At the same time, the results of the election
of BOD and BOS members must be included in the GMS Resolution.
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Article 12. Effective Date

This election regulation consists of 12 Articles and becomes effective upon
approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders. It shall apply solely to the election of
BOD and BOS members at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the
Company. ~, /

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Pham Ngoc Thanh
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TASECO LAND INVESTMENT
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No.: 01/2025/BC-HDQT

THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Hanoi, March 28, 2025

REPORT
ON THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND BOARD OF
DIRECTORS ACTIVITIES IN 2024; THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS PLAN
AND BOD’S ACTIVITIES IN 2025 AT THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

To: Shareholders of the Company.

The Board of Directors (BOD) of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company™ and/or “Taseco Land”) would like to
respectfully submit to the Shareholders the following report:

- The Company’s business performance and activities of the BOD in 2024;
- The Company’s business plan and the BOD’S activities in 20235.
A. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND ACTIVITIES OF THE BOD IN 2024

In 2024, Taseco Land achieved several milestones and essentially fulfilled the
targets set by the General Meeting of Sharcholders (“GMS™), with the following results:

I. BUSINESS RESULTS

1. Key Business Indicators

fiidisaton 2024 T:ilr_get 2024 Aa_:t!ml Achievement

(VND billion) | (VND billion) (%)
Consolidated revenue 3,040.0 1,684.5 55.4%
Consolidated profit before tax 614.0 875.6 142.6%
Consolidated profit after tax 475.0 685.0 144.2%

The 2024 consolidated revenue was primarily derived from the sale of real estate
products such as land lots and residential units from the No. 4 Thanh Hoa project, the
Nguyen Binh project, Alacarte Ha Long apartments, the NO1T6 project, and the Luong
Son Hoa Binh project; as well as from construction activities, leasing, building
management services, and hotel business operations.

In 2024, the Company completed the transfer of all shares in the enterprises
owning the B2-CC4 and B3-CC2A projects in the Tay Ho Tay urban area to foreign
investors, resulting in 864 billion VND in financial revenue.

Compared to the business plan approved by the 2024 Annual GMS, the Company
achieved 55.4% of the revenue target and 142.6% of the consolidated profit before tax
target, in comparison to 2023, revenue and profit before tax reached 52% and 140%,
respectively. Revenue from principal business operations fell short of the planned target
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because of the difficult real estate market and low market liquidity, which hindered the
Company's sales and business performance. Therefore, the Company has flexibly shifted
its focus to expedite the procedures for transferring shares in project-owning enterprises
in order to achieve the set profit plan and ensure capital for project investment.
Investment capital was reasonably allocated and adequately met the funding needs of
ongoing and new projects. The Company also fulfilled all principal and interest
obligations on schedule, restructured liabilities prudently to maintain financial stability,
expanded its project development land bank, ensured timely implementation of
construction works, and delivered products to customers as committed.

2. Investment Activities in 2024
a) Project Development
In 2024, Taseco Land expanded its land bank by an additional 94.06 hectares in
Quang Binh Province (Quan Hau project 16.82 ha, Luong Ninh project 35.08 ha) and
especially in Hanoi (Long Bien Apartment project 1.56 ha, Me Linh project 40.6 ha),
increasing the total land bank to 648 hectares.
b) Share transfer activities within project-specific enterprises
The Company successfully completed the transfer of all shares in TAH Investment
Joint Stock Company and Tam Nhin Ho Tay Joint Stock Company which owned the
B2-CC4 and B3-CC2A projects) with a total transfer value of over 2,200 billion VND.
¢) Planning Activities
The Company obtained approval for the 1/500 detailed planning of the 115-
hectare Duy Tien Project and the Dong Van III Industrial Park Project. It also completed
the preparation and submitted for appraisal the 1/500 detailed plans for the Nam Don
Luong, Nam Song Cau, and Taseco Resort.
d) Design Activities:
The Company finalized basic design evaluations for the Taseco Quang Binh,
Nam Thai, Trung Van, and Nguyen Binh projects. In addition, it completed the
documentation for fire prevention and fighting approval, technical design, and
construction drawing design for projects such as: Nam Thai project, 115-hectare Duy
Tien Project and Dong Van III Industrial Park, etc.
e) Project Implementation:
The Company commenced construction on three projects: Nam Thai Project,
Dong Van III Industrial Park Project, Taseco Quang Binh Resort Project.
f) Sales:
The Company launched sales campaigns for three projects: Phase 2 of the No.
4 Thanh Hoa project with over 250 units; Phase 1 of the Nam Thai project with 74
shophouse units, and Phase 1 of the Nguyen Binh project with over 300 units.
3. Construction Activities
In 2024, construction activities met the Company’s quality and schedule
requirements and contributed nearly VND 340 billion in revenue.



4. Building management operations and Hospitality Services

The Company’s building management operations in projects in which the company
was project investor continued to receive positive feedback from residents and
customers for service quality and dedication in work. This not only helped enhance the
Company’s reputation but also built customer confidence in future products.

IL.LBOD’S ACTIVITIES IN 2024

1. General activities

In2024, to promptly address matters under its authority, the BOD actively engaged
in operating activities convening 30 in-person meetings and 15 meetings collecting
written opinions, all achieving a 100% approval rate. The BOD effectively fulfilled its
roles and responsibilities in formulating the Company’s policies and medium- to long-
term strategies. All resolutions and decisions were issued in compliance with the
Company’s Charter, the Law on Enterprises, and the Law on Securities, with full
disclosure detailed in the 2024 Corporate Governance Report. Key activities include:

a) Business Operations and Investment

- Maintained stable business operations and achieved most of the key targets
despite ongoing volatility in the real estate market.

- Closely monitored budget implementation and financial management,
ensuring prudent spending and sufficient capital to support investment and business
activities, in full compliance with internal regulations and with an aim to minimize
financial risks.

- Directed the search and development of new projects, expanded land bank and
diversified product portfolio, continuing to broaden investment into strategic projects
ranging from urban areas and resorts to industrial park infrastructure.

- Selected and partnered with other developers through project co-development,
joint ventures, and M&A activities,. ..

- Accelerated the completion of legal procedures and construction progress to
meet regulatory conditions for continued product launches.

- Paid dividends in cash to existing shareholders in accordance with the plan
approved by the 2024 Annual GMS at a rate of 15% of the charter capital of VND 2,970
billion, equivalent to a total payout of VND 445.5 billion.

- Successfully conducted a public offering of 14,850,000 common shares to
existing shareholders at VND 10,000 per share, raising VND 148.5 billion to fund
investment and development projects. Afier the capital increase, Taseco Land™s total
number of shares is 311,850,000 shares, corresponding to a charter capital of VND
3,118.5 billion.

- Implemented plans to contribute capital, acquire shares, and restructure the
Company’s capital sources.



b) Human Resources and Organizational Structure

- Conducted workforce evaluations and reorganized personnel to streamline the
organizational structure.

- Appointed and dismissed executives in the Board of Management:

+ Appointed Mr. Ngo Thanh Dung as Deputy General Director effective from
June 3, 2024, pursuant to Decision No. 17/2024/QD-HPQT dated June 3, 2024 of the
BOD of the Company.

+ Dismissed Mr. Khuat Trung Thang from the position of Deputy General
Director effective from November 1, 2024, pursuant to Resolution No. 33/2024/NQ-
HDQT dated October 31, 2024 of the BOD of the Company, to introduce the
management position at [ICON4 Company.

2. Supervision results of the BOD

In accordance with the Company’s Charter, Corporate Governance Regulations,
and current laws, the BOD continuously carried out its supervisory functions over the
management and executive activities through various tools to monitor the performance
of the General Director and other executives throughout 2024, as follows:

a) Monitoring the implementation of Business Strategy and Financial Plans

- Led and successfully organized the written shareholders’ written opinion on
February 22, 2024, and the 2024 Annual GMS on April 25, 2024..

Held regular meetings with the Board of Management (BOM) to evaluate the
implementation of business plans and analyze market developments, thereby promptly
issuing strategic directions and policies to ensure revenue, profit, and growth targets are
met as planned.

- Closely tracked budget execution and financial compliance to minimize
financial risk.

Monitored the implementation of GMS”s resolutions and BOD’Ss decisions
related to the public offering of shares..

Monitored interest payments on bonds and bond buybacks in advance
accordance with the issuance plan.

- Directed and ensured the preparation of Financial Statements and Annual
Reports in strict compliance with regulations.

- Selected the auditing firm for the Company’s 2024 financial statements.
b) Supervision on Legal and Internal Regulation Compliance

- Supervised the BOM”s compliance with all laws governing corporate
operations, including tax, labor, and corporate governance.

- Supervised the timely and transparent disclosure of information in accordance
with legal requirements.

Evaluated compliance with internal policies to enhance the transparency and



cffectiveness of the Company’s governance structure.
¢) Supervision on Corporate Governance

Monitored the implementation of resolutions/decisions by the Annual GMS and
the BOD.

- Supervised the deployment of the risk management system to ensure effective

risk prevention and mitigation measures.

Overall Assessment: The BOD fulfilled its supervisory duties with due diligence
in line with the Company’s Charter and applicable laws. It conducted oversight and
management activities to maximize corporate efficiency and shareholder interests. The
Management Board strictly complied with laws, the Company’s Charter, and internal
policies in its operations.

The year 2024 witnessed strong efforts by the BOM in upholding its
responsibilities amidst economic and market fluctuations, striving to overcome
challenges and effectively implement the BOD’Ss strategic directions. According to the
BOD’Ss assessment, the BOM effectively executed the BOD’Ss resolutions and
decisions. Each executive fulfilled their respective responsibilities while maintaining
close coordination for the Company’s common goals. The organizational structure of
the BOM remained well aligned with the Company’s operations. Its members are
professionally qualified, possess strong ethics, and have extensive experience in their
assigned fields. The General Director clearly delegated responsibilities to Deputy
General Directors and held monthly briefings to evaluate performance and assign
upcoming tasks. In addition to regular and extraordinary meetings, the BOD and the
BOM maintained ongoing communication regarding corporate strategy, business
results, and the implementation of Annual GMS”s resolutions. The BOM also
collaborated with the Trade Union to ensure employees™ material and spiritual well-
being.

3. Assessment of the performance of the BOD’Ss Members

In 2024, all members of the BOD attended the meetings with a strong sense of
responsibility, demonstrating their governance and leadership capabilities for the benefit
of shareholders and the sustainable development of the Company.

In addition to fulfilling their collective responsibilities within the BOD, each

member successfully carried out their assigned duties, specifically:

- The Chairman of the BOD performed duties in accordance with the Company’s
Charter and applicable laws, including developing and executing the annual work
program, convening and organizing meetings, and promptly issuing Resolutions and
Decisions to ensure the effective organization and operation of the Company.
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- BOD members in charge of specific business segments and subsidiaries guided
the implementation of business plans, contributing to the Company’s overall business
results in 2024,

- The BOD held weekly meetings with the BOM, Chief Accountant, and heads of
functional departments to stay informed on operational matters and to provide timely
directions to resolve any difficulties, thereby ensuring that the Company’s business plans
were executed as scheduled.

4. Transactions between the Company and related parties

All transactions between the Company and related parties were carried out in
accordance with the Law on Enterprises, the Law on Securities, and the Company’s
Charter. Details of such transactions have been fully disclosed in the 2024 Corporate
Governance Report.

5. Remuneration, Bonuses, and Other Benefits of the BOD, Executive Board,

and Chief Accountant

In 2024, the remuneration, bonuses, and other benefits of the BOD and the BOM
were fully reflected in the audited 2024 Financial Statements.

a) Remuneration of the BOD

The remuneration paid to the BOD complied with the levels approved by the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Specific details are as follows:

Total
No. Full name Position Remuneration in Notes
2024 (VND)
1 | Pham Ngoc Thanh Chairman of the BOD 180,000,000
2 | Nguyen Minh Hai Vice Chairman of the BOD 120,000,000
3 | Do Tuan Anh Vice Chairman of the BOD 120,000,000
4 | Nguyen Tran Tung Member of the BOD 84,000,000
5 | Do Viet Thanh Member of the BOD 84,000,000
| Total 588,000,000
b) Salaries and Bonuses of the BOD, BOM, and Chief Accountant in 2024
- Salary &
No. Fullname Position Bonus in 2024 Notes
(VND)
1 | Pham Ngoc Thanh Chairman of the BOD 700,000,000
2 | Nguyen Minh Hai Vi Chglgf)an aripe 600,000,000
3 | Do Tuan Anh Vi Chg’g‘;““ ke 1,032,222,222
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Salary &
No, Fullname Position Bonus in 2024 Notes
(VND)
BOD Member, Chief
4 3
Nguyen Tran Tung Executive Officer (CEO) 1,582,400,000
5 | Do Viet Thanh BOD Metnber, Deputy | | 547 305,556
CEQ
6 | Vu Quoc Huy Deputy CEO 1,293,055,556
7| Cao Thi Lan Huong Deputy CEO 1,106,993,056
8 | Nguyen Van Nghia Deputy CEO 1,034,508,306
Dismissed from
9 | Khuat Trung Thang Deputy CEO 854,770,833 | November Ist,
2024
-, | Appointed from
10 | Ngo Thanh Dung Deputy CEO 414,055,556 June 3th, 2024
Il | Bui Xuan Vuong Deputy CEO 1,001.618,056
[2 | Nguyen Thi Kim Ngan Chief Accountant 1,021,595.394
Total 11,888.524,535
B. BUSINESS PLAN AND BOD’S ACTIVITIES IN 2025
I. 2025 BUSINESS PLAN
1. Key Business Targets
Economic forecasts indicate that 2025 will continue to pose significant challenges
for the Company’s business operations, In light of these conditions, the BOD has set the
following key business targets for 2025:
No. Indicator 2025 Target (VND billion)
1 Consolidated Revenue 4.332.0
2 | Consolidated Profit Before Tax 686.0
3 | Consolidated Profit After Tax 536.0
4 | Expected Dividend Rate (on Par value) 15%

Based on the Company’s actual business operations, those of its subsidiaries in
2025, and market conditions, the GMS authorizes the BOD to decide on adjustments to
the Company’s 2025 business plan.

The BOD shall be responsible for reporting and explaining the adjustments to
shareholders at the next Annual GMS.

2. Implementation Objectives for 2025




a) Project development

Building upon its established market position, Taseco Land will continue to
accelerate its investment in project development. The Company aims to complete and
put into operation key projects while actively seeking and developing new, high-
potential projects. This includes expanding its land and project portfolios in various
promising localities nationwide such as Hanoi, Hai Phong, Hai Duong, Thai Nguyen,
Bac Ninh, and Hung Yen, etc. In 2025, the Company targets to launch at least 04 new
projects with a total land area of projected 300 hectares

For projects that have already been approved in terms of investment policy and
investor appointment, the Company will focus on completing all necessary legal
procedures to proceed with implementation. Land clearance and compensation efforts
will continue, with a targeted land acquisition area of 151.4 hectares in 2025. The
Company also plans to complete land allocation for 05 projects with a total area of 81.44
hectares. Other key legal procedures such as land use fee calculation and payment, as
well as zoning and planning activities (including the completion and approval of 1/500

scale master plans), will also be prioritized and accelerated.
b) Construction activities

In 2025, the Company will continue to organize the implementation of
groundbreaking, construction, and completion of technical infrastructure systems;
organize and supervise construction to ensure quality, progress, and efficiency at
projects. Notably, in 2025, Taseco Land is expected to start construction on 06 new
projects including: Trung Van Project; Taseco Long Bien Project; Taseco Resort
Project; Quan Hau Project; Me Linh Social Housing Project and 115-hectare Duy Tien

Project.
¢) Business Operations

Taseco Land will continue to implement sales and marketing plans for the
following projects in 2025: Project No. 4 (Thanh Hoa), Nguyen Binh Project, Nam Thai
Project, ALC Ha Long Project, Luong Son Project, NO1T6 Project.

Additionally, the Company will study and prepare business strategies for 03 new
projects, including: Long Bien Project, Dong Van I11 Industrial Park, Trung Van Project.

The effective implementation of these business strategies is expected to play a
key role in achieving the Company’s revenue and profit targets for 2025.

d) Operations with Digital Transformation Strategy

In the era of globalization and the ongoing Fourth Industrial Revolution, digital

transformation has become an essential trend, playing a critical role in enhancing



corporate competitiveness. In Vietnam, this process is being actively promoted by
government agencies, organizations, and enterprises to optimize operations and drive

long-term value creation.

Recognizing the importance of this trend, Taseco Land has developed a
comprehensive 3-to-5-year digital transformation roadmap, set to begin in early 2025.
The initial phase will focus on digitizing the Company’s data systems and information
infrastructure to improve operational efficiency and streamline project and office
workflows. At the same time, the Company will review and revise its operational
procedures, integrating modern management practices with advanced technologies such
as artificial intelligence (AI) and virtual reality (VR) in key functions including
corporate governance, project management, sales, and post-investment property

management.

Through this strategy, Taseco Land aims to optimize operations, enhance
governance transparency, improve customer experience, and strengthen its competitive

edge-laying a robust foundation for sustainable long-term growth.
II. BOD’S OPERATION PLAN FOR 2025
1. Budget Plan for the BOD’Ss Remuneration in 2025
a) Remuneration of the BOD in 2025

Monthly
No. Position Quantity | Remuneration | Months | Total (VND)
(VND)
{ |Cmatimar e 01 15,000,000 12| 180,000,000
Board

2 | Vice Chairman 02 10,000,000 12 240,000,000

3 | Board Member 02 | 7,000,000 12 168,000,000

| Total Remuneration 588,000,000

Note: Remuneration for members of the BOD will be accounted for as part of the
Company’s business operating expenses

b) Salaries and bonuses for full-time Board members in 2025: To be paid in
accordance with the Company’s salary, bonus, and staff support regulations.

¢) Bonus for Board members in 2025: To be allocated from the Company’s
reward and welfare fund and shall not exceed the rate approved by the GMS.

2. Operational orientation of the BOD

In 2025, the BOD will focus on strategic goals to ensure the sustainable

development and improved operational efficiency of the Company. To achieve this, the
Board will pursue the following orientations:



a) Implementation of medium- and long-term development strategy:
Continue the execution of plans under the strategy approved by the GMS, with emphasis
on sustainable growth, project portfolio expansion, and business performance
enhancement,

b) Short-term strategy

- Enhancing shareholder value: Ensure stable business operations, optimize
profits, and protect shareholders” interests through reasonable dividend policies.

- Promoting digital transformation: Oversee the implementation of the digital
transformation roadmap, enhancing technology applications in corporate governance,
project management, sales, and post-investment management.

- Strengthening risk management and internal control: Improve the risk
management system, ensure legal compliance, and enhance transparency and efficiency
in internal control activities. Ensure company operations comply with legal regulations
and market practices

- Human resources development: Focus on building a competent leadership team
and key personnel, improving governance capacity, and professionalizing the
organizational structure.

3. Implementation Solutions for 2025 tasks

a) Accelerating project development and business activities

- Develop the 2025 business plan and implement it decisively and effectively
from the beginning of the year. Organize financial planning to ensure capital sources for
project execution.

- Supervise and manage investment implementation effectively and in
accordance with the law and internal company regulations. Prioritize investment and
business in the key projects mentioned above.

- Actively seek investment opportunities and expand land and project reserves in
potential localities across the country such as Hanoi, Hai Phong, Thai Nguyen, Bac
Ninh, Bac Giang, Hung Yen, Ha Nam, Thanh Hoa, Quang Binh, etc., to build and
maintain the position of a reputable professional real estate enterprise. In addition to real
estate business, the Company will continue to develop property management services
such as hotel operation, building management, and industrial park infrastructure
business.

- Strengthen marketing efforts, improve service quality, and enhance customer
experience to boost business performance.

b) Improving governance efficiency, human resources development, and
corporate culture

- Maintain the BOD’Ss meetings and participate in the BOM™s meetings to stay
updated and closely monitor the Company’s business activities, serving timely

10



governance and leadership needs of the BOD.

t Update and revise the BOD’Ss operational regulations and procedures towards
professionalism, transparency, and alignment with good governance practices; elect an
independent member at the 2025 Annual GMS to comply with legal requirements for

listed companies, in line with the Company’s plan to transfer its stock trading from
UPCOM to the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange.

- Continue to arrange and assign capital representatives at subsidiaries to leverage
their capabilities and responsibilities, and ensure governance and operations at
subsidiaries comply with legal regulations.

- Enhance internal training and foster a culture of self-improvement in
competencies and skills among staff and departments. Assign clear responsibilities to
each department and position to strengthen accountability. Also conduct reviews and
assessments for ecach position to ensure appropriate staffing based on capabilities,
strengths, contributions, and job requirements, and plan timely recruitment or
replacement.

- Focus appropriate investment on R&D activities (human resources, policies,
facilities), and adequately prepare platforms (personnel, partners, capital, etc.) for large-
scale strategic infrastructure projects (industrial zones, electricity, water investments...)

¢) Enhancing financial management and capital optimization

- Flexibly and efficiently manage capital balances, use costs reasonably,
maximize revenues, and improve business efficiency across the system.

- Be prepared with large-scale medium- and long-term capital mobilization plans
and implement them when conditions are favorable.

d) Implementing digital transformation roadmap

- Accelerate digitalization of data and workflows, improve operational efficiency
and management.

- Apply Al Big Data, and other modern technologies in governance, project
management, sales, and after-sales services.

- Build intelligent reporting and data analysis systems to support timely and
accurate decision-making by the BOD and the BOM.

This is the report of the BOD at the 2025 Annual GMS. The BOD firmly believes
that the consensus, support, and trust of shareholders will be a great driving force
enabling the Board to effectively fulfill its responsibilities and contribute to the
Company’s overall success, enhancing shareholder value in line with its stated mission.

On behalf of the BOD, I sincerely thank our valued shareholders for their trust and
continued support over the past years.

Wishing all distinguished guests, shareholders, and employees of the Company
good health and success.

11



Wishing the General Meeting a great success! [V,

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF
- GMS; THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- BOD and BOS Members; CHAIRMAN

- Archives: Office, Secretary.

Pham Ngoc Thanh
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TASECO LAND INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

S6: 01/2025/BC-BKS HaNoi, March 28% 2025

REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
AT THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders
Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company.

Pursuant to the functions and responsibilities of the Board of Supervisors in
accordance with the Law on Enterprises and the Charter of Taseco Land Investment
Joint Stock Company (“the Company”);

Pursuant to the business situation, the financial statements, and the performance
evaluation report of the Board of Directors for 2024.

The Board of Supervisors (BOS) respectfully submits to the General Meeting of /

Shareholders (GMS) the report on its activities in 2024 as follows:" ;f* I[';
1. Members and Structure of the Board of Supervisors ' [x| 8
The Board of Supervisors of the Company consists of 03 (three) members, K
specifically:
s Number of g

No. Member Position Shaxes Ownership

1 | Ms. Tran Thi Loan Head of the Board 0 0

2 | Mr. Dang Xuan Hien Member 13,715 0.004%

3 | Ms. Nguyen Thi Huong Member 6,898 0.002%

2. Activities of the Board of Supervisors and Members

2.1. Meetings of the Board of Supervisors

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors held 02 meetings to carry out tasks within its
authority and responsibilities. The meetings discussed and agreed upon the following
matters:

- Approval of the Board of Supervisors’s working program for 2024.

- Review and approval of the Company’s quarterly, semi-annual, and annual
financial statements, as well as those of its subsidiaries, assessment of the Company’s
business performance in 2024 and the preparation of documents for the Annual GMS.

- Evaluation of the compliance with the Resolutions of the Annual GMS,

Resolutions of the Board of Directors (“BOD™), and observance of State regulations
during 2024,

- Agreement on conclusions from inspection and supervision of the Company’s



operations and those of its subsidiaries.

- Development of the BOS activity plan for 2025.

2.2. Self-Assessment report on the Activities of the Board of Supervisors

In 2024, the BOS actively carried out supervision activities and provided
recommendations for necessary adjustments in the Company’s management. The
specific activities are as follows:

- Supervised the implementation of the Resolutions of the GMS and the BOD in
2024 to ensure compliance with legal regulations and protection of shareholders’
interests.

- Reviewed strategic decisions, investment policies, and business operations of the
BOD to ensure fransparency and alignment with approved plans.

- Inspected the disclosure of information regarding BOD’s decisions, particularly
important matters related to finance, investment planning, and related-party
transactions.

- Reviewed periodic reports prepared by the Board of Management (BOM);
examined the 2024 financial statements to assess the truthfulness and fairness of
financial figures in accordance with prevailing accounting standards, accounting
regimes, and financial policies in Vietnam. The BOS coordinated with the independent
auditor to evaluate the impact of significant accounting and audit discrepancies on the
financial statements; supervised the BOM in implementing the auditors'
recommendations.

- Inspected capital usage, financial expenditures, and compliance with the budget
approved by the GMS. The BOS paid special attention to major contracts and significant
financial transactions to ensure their reasonableness and transparency.

- Oversaw governance practices of subsidiary companies, capital investment
activities, and operations of affiliated companies.

- Collaborated with functional departments to conduct inspections and reviews of
information and documents under the authority of the BOS.

- Monitored risk control activities during the Company’s operations, including
legal, financial, and business-related risks. _

- Performed other tasks in accordance with the Company’s Charter and relevant
legal regulations.

2.3. Self-Assessment report on the activities of each member of the Board of
Supervisors.

All members of the BOS meet the conditions and standards as prescribed by the
Law on Enterprises and the Company’s Charter. In 2024, each member demonstrated
strong competence and a high sense of responsibility in fulfilling their assigned duties;
they provided regular supervision and consultation in an independent and objective
manner regarding the Company’s. operations. All members fully participated in



meetings, engaged in discussions related to inspection and supervision activities, and
confributed opinions at meetings of the Company’s Board of Directors.

2.4. Remuneration of the Board of Supervisors in 2024:

No. Member Position Remﬁu;%s;tmn
1 | Ms. Tran Thi Loan Head of the Board 60,000,000
2 | Mr. Dang Xuan Hien Member 36,000,000
3 | Ms. Nguyen Thi Huong Member 36,000,000
Total 132,000,000

3. Results of Supervision over the Company’s Business and Financial Activities
3.1.Financial Statement Review Results

- The BOS concurs with the separate and consolidated financial statements for a0
2024 audited by Ernst & Young Vietnam Co., Ltd. NG

- The Company’s 2024 business performance has been fully and clearly presented b. !
in the financial statements. These statements reflect the Company’s financial position, Sh
business results, and cash flows ftruthfully and reasonably in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards and prevailing accounting regulations.

3.2.2024 Business Plan Implementation Results

The BOS agrees with the BOM’s explanation for not meeting the revenue target
approved by the GMS. However, the BOS acknowledges the efforts of the BOM in
successfully completing the transfer of the B2CC4 and B3CC2A projects to foreign
investors through shares transfer arrangements, which generated substantial financial
income for the Company and helped it significantly exceed the profit targets. The actual
2024 business performance is as follows:

Unit: Billion VND

Indicator 2024 Plan | 2024 Actual | Completion
Consolidated Revenue 3,040.0 1,684.5 55.4%
Consolidated Profit Before Tax 614.0 875.6 142.6%
Consolidated Profit After Tax 475.0 685.0 144.2%

3.3. Accounting Activities

The Company’s accounting activities comply fully with applicable laws and
current accounting standards. Based on its review, the BOS assessed that the Company’s
accounting system is scientifically organized, streamlined, and efficient; all documents



and records are properly maintained and neatly archived; and the reported data is
accurate and timely.

3.4.Financial Activities

- The BOS has reviewed the Company’s financial position, investment activities,
and business operations in accordance with the plans and objectives approved by the
GMS and the BOD.

- The Company has proactively planned and effectively balanced its finances
despite facing several operational challenges. At the same time, it has maintained a
stable financial position with sufficient cash flow to support business operations, a safe
debt ratio, and a rational structure of assets and capital.

4, Evaluation of Transactions Between the Company and Related Parties

- The procedures for approving transactions between the Company and related
parties have been carried out in accordance with applicable regulations.

- Related party transactions approved by the BOD have been listed and disclosed
in the 2024 Corporate Governance Report. |

5. Supervision Results on the Implementation of Resolutions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders

- The Company appointed Ernst & Young Vietnam Co., Ltd. as the auditor for the
2024 financial statements.

- The Company fulfilled the payment of remuneration to the BOD and the BOS in
accordance with the resolution approved at the Annual GMS.

- The Company completed the cash dividend distribution as approved by the
Annual GMS.

- The Company successfully conducted the share offering to existing shareholders
in accordance with the resolution approved by the Annual GMS.

6. Supervision Results on the Board of Directors
6.1. Members of the BOD

s Number of Ownershi
No. Member Position Shares Ratio P
1 | Mr. Pham Ngoc Thanh Chairman 0 0
2 | Mr. Nguyen Minh Hai Vice Chairman 0 0
3 | Mr. Do Tuan Anh Vice Chairman 143,948 0.046%
4 | Mr. Nguyen Tran Tung Member 458,914 0.147%
5 | Mr. Do Viet Thanh Member 0 0

6.2. Evaluation of the Board of Directors’ Performance
- The BOD’ report accurately and comprehensively reflects the Company’s
management and governance activities. All resolutions and documents issued by the
Board are in accordance with the Law on Enterprises and the Company’s Charter. The

lail



BOS agrees with the 2024 performance report presented by the BOD to the GMS.

- Throughout the year, the BOD actively implemented a number of issues under
its authority. Its governance and management activities strictly complied with legal
regulations and business principles. Members of the BOD fulfilled their assigned roles
and responsibilities as stipulated by the Law on Enterprises, the Company’s Charter,
and resolutions of the GMS.

- The BOD closely supervised and promptly guided the BOM in managing
business operations and implementing the resolutions of the GMS.

7. Supervision results on the General Director and other managers

7.1. Member of Board of Management

- To meet the need for additional senior personnel at a subsidiary, the BOD issued
Resolution No. 33/2024/NQ-HPQT dated October 31, 2024 to relieve Mr. Khuat Trung
Thang from the position of Deputy General Director and assign him to another role at
the subsidiary.

- Mr. Ngo Thanh Dung was appointed Deputy General Director of the Company
from June 3, 2024 under Resolution No. 17/2024/NQ-BOD of the BOD.

- The current Board of Management includes:

No. Member Position N'é‘;:::;‘}f Ow:aetli'(s) aip
1 | Mr. Nguyen Tran Tung General Director 458,914 0.147%
2 | Mr. Do Viet Thanh e 0 0
3 | Mr. Vu Quoc Huy Depggeg‘vg:eral 11,766 0.004%
4 | Ms. Cao Thi Lan Huong Depl‘;gef;‘;ml 0 0
5 | Mr. Nguyen Van Nghia | >Foo oenere! 11,550 0.004%
| Mr.NgoThanhDung | DePuy Cener E :
7 | Mr. Bui Xuan Vuong De"ggﬂf;’:ml 0 0

7.2. Evaluation of the BOM’s Performance
- The BOS agrees with the BOM’s evaluation of the Company’s 2024 business
performance and its 2025 business plan.

- The BOM has complied with all legal provisions and fulfilled its assigned
functions and responsibilities under the Law on Enterprises, the Company’s Charter,
and resolutions of the GMS.

- The BOS highly appreciates the BOM’s efforts in implementing investment
projects, fulfilling tax obligations to the State, and ensuring employee welfare.
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- During the year, the BOS did not detect any irregularities in the management or
operations of the BOM or other senior management positions in the Company.

8. Evaluation of coordination between the Board of Supervisors, Board of
Directors, Board of Management and Shareholders:

- The BOS received full support and cooperation from the BOD, the BOM, and
all departments in conducting its supervisory and inspection duties at the Company and
its subsidiaries.

- The BOS was fully provided with information on the Company’s 2024 business
performance and 2025 business plan.

- The BOS representatives attended and contributed opinions at all meetings of
the BOD.

9. Board of Supervisors’s Activity Plan for 2025

9.1 General Tasks:

In 2025, the BOS will continue to perform its duties on behalf of the shareholders
to regularly supervise all governance, management, and business activities of the
Company. On a quarterly basis, the BOS will review, analyze, and evaluate the
Company’s activities through financial reports, as well as monitor the activities of the
BOD and the BOM. It will also attend Board’s meetings to gain insights and accurately
assess the Company’s operations, provide warnings of potential risks, and be
responsible for reporting to the GMS.

9.2 Specific Activities

- Review and evaluate financial statements, governance reports, and operational
reports of the Company.

Strengthen oversight of business plan implementation.

Supervise compliance with legal regulations and company policies.

Review the adequacy of internal management procedures and documentation.

Monitor the implementation of resolutions approved by the General Meeting
of Shareholders.

9.3 Board of Supervisors’ remuneration plan for 2025

Monthly
No. Position N;::_I::;;f Remuneration N;:;:gsﬁ [‘qutmal)
(VND)
y | BeslokBoadinr 01 5,000,000 12 60,000,000
Supervisors
2 Controllers 02 3.000,000 12 72,000,000
Total 132,000,000

Note: Remuneration for members of the BOS is accounted for as part of the

Company’s business operating expenses.
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The above is the BOS’s 2024 Activity Report and 2025 activity plan submitted to
the General Meeting of Sharcholders for approval. We wish all Delegates and
Shareholders continued success and happiness.

Wishing the General Meeting great success!
Sincerely thank you./.

Hanoi, March 2% |, 2025
ON BEHALF OF

THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
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TASECO LAND INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No. 01/2025/TTr-HDQT Hanoi, March 28" 2025

PROPOSAL
Approval of the 2024 Audited Financial Statements

To: General Meeting of Shareholders
Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020 and guiding documents;

Pursuant to the Charter of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company
(hereinafier referred to as the "Company").

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval the Separate Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial
Statements for 2024 of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company, which have been
audited by Ernst & Young Vietnam Company Limited.

The Company’s audited Separate Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial
Statements for 2024, including the following contents:

1. Independent audit report.

2. Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2024.
3.
4
5

Income Statement in 2024.

. Cash Flow Statement in 2024.
. Notes to 2024 Financial Statement.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration
and approval.

Respect./. (\/”

Recipient: ON BEHALF OF
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stack Company

GENERAL INFORMATICN

THE COMPANY
Taseco Land Investmant Joint Stock Company *the Company ™ i= & joint stock company incorpoerated
uncler the Law oh Enterprise of Yietnam in pursuant b the Business Reglstratlon Cenlficate Mo,

0104079036 issued by Hanoi Dapartmant ¢f Planning and Imvestnent on 29 July 2003 and the

subsequant amendad Business Reqistration Certificates, with the 22 amendment dated 11 March
2025 as tha latast

The cument phncipal activiies of the Gompany are investing and trading real estate propertias and
uthar activities.

The parstit company of e Company s Tassoo Grous Joint Steck Company (Taseda Graup©}

The Cormpany’s head office is bocated at 19 floor, HO2-T1 building, Diplomatic Complex, Xuan Tao
streat, Xuan Tao wand, Bac Tu Liam district, Hanoi city, WYistnam.

BOARD OF HRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors {*BE0D0T) during the year and at the date of this report ans:

kr Pham MNgoo Thanh L hairman

htr Mejiean Mink Hai Yioe ChalrmzEn
kir Oo Tuan Anh YWice Chairmen
fir Oo Viet Thanh Mambear

Mr Mguyen Tran Tumg Mambar
MANAGEMENT

Members of the Managament during the year and at the date of this raport ane:

Mr Nguyen Tran Tung {General Director

Mr Cro Wiet Thanh Deputy Generat Director

Mr MNguyen Wan MNghka Creplity General Directar

hir W0 Crune Huy Daputy (renarat Diractor

Mr Bui Auan Yuong Ceputy Genaral Director

M= Can Thi Lan Heong Bapuly Generat Diractor

Mr Mgo Thanh Dung Beputy Generai Director  appointed on 03 June 2024

Mr khugat Trung Thang Beputy General Director  resigned on 01 November 2024

BCARD OF SUPERVISION

Mernbers of the Board of Supenasion dunng the vear and at the date of this mapant g

KMz Tran Thi Loan Head of tha Board
Ms Nguyan Thi Hugng tember

kM1 Dang Xuan Hien Membar

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal eepresentative of the Company durkng the year and at the date of this report is Mr Mguyen
Tran Tung, e General Diredtor,

AUDITOR.

The auditor of the Company i Emst & Young Yistnam Limited.

=
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

REFORT OF MANAGEMENT

mManagement of Tazeco Land |nvestment Joint Stock Company {“the Compary’ ] s pleased o present
this repoit and the separate Anancial skataments of e Company foe the year ended 31 Deoamber
2024,

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE SEPARATE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the separate financial statements of each financial year which give &
true and fair view of the separale financial poslifon of the Company and of the separate results of ke
cyperations and its separate cash flows for the year, In preparing those separata fnancial statements,
management is requirad o

salect slltable aceounting pollsles and then apply them conskstzntly;
k  make judgements and estimates that are reasonabla and prudent;

k slabe whether appisable acoounting stEndards have bean followesd, subject to any materal
departures disclosed and explained in the separgte fmancial statements; and

k prepare the separate financial statements on the going cobcern baels unless It s Iapprapriate to
presume that the Company will confinue its business.

Managemant is responsike for ensuring that proper accounting records arm kept which discloss, with
reasonable sccuracy at any tme, the separata financial position of the Company and for ensuring that
the accounting records comply with the applied atcounting system. it i3 also responsible for
asafeguarding the assets of the Company and hense for taking reasonable sleps e be prévention
and detection of fraud and other inegulartles,

Management confimed that it has complied with the abowve regulrements o prepaning the
accompany g separate finandsal slaterents,




Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

REFORT OF MANAGEMENT [sonbinted)

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

Management does heralby sate that, in b opinion, the geeompanying separate financial statements
giva a trua and fair view of the separata financial position of the CGompany as at 31 Decamber 2024
and of the separate resulls of B cperationz and its separate cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Vietnamese Acoourting Standards, Viemamese Emterprise Acoounting System and
the stattory requirements relevant b the preparation angd presentation of the separate flnancial
staternents,

Tha Company has subsidiarfes as disclzsed in the separste financial zEtements. The Company
prapared thess saparsta financial statements to meat the pravailing requirsrents in relation to
disclogure of information, speciiically the Circubar No. 982020/ TT-BTC on disclosure of infarmation
on the securities markst [naddition, a2 required by these regulations, the Company has #so prepansd
the consolidated financial siEtememtz of the Company and it subsidianes for he year ended 31
Desember 2024 dated 28 March 2025,

Users of the separate finatclal skatements should read themn teqalher with the sald consolidated
financlal statements i order 1 obtain Al infomation on the consclidated financial positicen, the
consotdated results of operations and the consdlidatad cash flows of the Company and ils

sidiares. “\_a__.__
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INDEPERDENT AUDITORS® REPORT 1=-“===
o

e
GTY

To:  The Sharahokders of Tasaco Land Investment Jalmt Stock Company W L]
BYO

e have audited the accompanying separste fingncial statements of Taseco Land Investment Joint ‘MAb

Stock Company (“the Company ™) 83 prepared on 26 March 2025 and set out on page § 1o 61, which

comprise the separate batanee shest as at 31 Decambar 2024, and Ihe saparata Income statemant and T-iEE

separate cash flow statzment for the year then andad and tha notes thereto.

Managamant's rasponsihillty

Managemesnt is respansible for the preparation amd fair presentation of these =eparate financial
skatemants in accordanca with Vislnamase Accovrnting Stardzrds, Yietnamesa Entarprize Accounbing
System and the statubory reguiremeants relevant o he preparatien and presentation of the separate
financial statermerts, and for such internal control a5 management determines |s necessary 16 enabie the
preparation and presentation of the separate financlal statemenizs that ane free from materls|
mizstatament, whethar dus to fraug or ermor.

Aipitars’ respansibiity

Our regponsibility 2 to axprass an oinion o thase separata financig stataments based on our audit
We conducted pur augit in accordance with Vietmamese Standards on Auditing. Those standzards reqguire
that we comply with ethical requiraments and plan smd perfarm the audit to obtain reasonable assuramss
ataut whether the s=parate Rnancial statements ane frae from makenal risstatensant.

An audit invalves performdng proceduras Yo obtain audil evidence aboot tha amounts and disclosunes in
tha saparate financizl skstemants. The procedures selected depend on the auditors” judgrnent, inciuding
tha assessment of he nisks of mafenal misstatemant af the separats Anancial stataments, whathear due
to fraud or emor. In making those sk assessments, the audilors consikder intemal conbot relevant to the
Company's preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial statements in order bo design audit
procedures that are eppropriste in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
an the effectivensss of the Company's inlamal sonttal, An audil Aso [roludes svalualing the
appropinataness of accounting polickas vsed and tha reasonablenazs of accounting estinatas made by
managemesnt, as well 25 evaluating the overall presentation of the separate financial stElements.

Wie beleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is cufficiant 2nd appropniata o provide 2 basis for
our audit opdinicn.

A nerber Amn 1 Emak B wong Glabal Lirksd
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Qpirion

kn our opinion, e separate financial statements give a ue and fair view, in al matenal respects, of the
saparate financizl position of the Company as at 31 Dacamber 2024, and of e separste results of s
gperakens and its separate cash fows for the year then ended In ascerdancs with Yietnamese

Aocounting Standards, Viathamese Enterprlse Accounting Systemn and the statutory reduiramants
relevant ko the preparation and presemtaton of the separate finangial staterments,

Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited
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eral Direttor Auditer
Audit Prawtisihyg Regishation Ak Practising Reglsiraton
Certfleats Mo, 2588-2023-004-1 Certifivate No. 44232-2023-004-1

Hanl. Vietnam

26 March 20235
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

SEPARATE BALAMCE SHEET
as at 31 December 2024

BM-DN

Curen IZ'.'E.' YD

Code | ASSETE Motas Ertdivtg bedance | Segining belamse
100 | A. CURRENT ASSETS 8,237,170,883,5%95 | 4,565,260,0:25,083
71 i.  Cash and cash aquivalanis 5 248,281,987, 799 7, 776, 740 367
111 1. Cash 91, 325,001,790 19,885,197 453
112 2. Tash equivalents 250,955, Q0,000 151,891,543 508
124 il. Short-tarnr fnvesinrants o4, 730, i, 0048 1537 1,0008,000
123 1. Haki-to-maturity

investments & 5,730,000 000 17,371,000, 000
12 | # Cuirerd account recelvables 847 392 147582 | 1,133,813.418,332
131 1. Short-teanm rade

receivables 1 402 566,716,102 783 014,606 404
132 2. Shott-term advances o

suppliers Tl 65040647 753 83 042 252,540
135 3 Shotterm loan recelvables 8 2E1.590,000,000 258 027 200,000
136 4, Other shornt-term

resalvablas o 1598901, 248 238 0,835,854, 830
137 &, Provision for shart-tem 71,

doybifiel recaiyables 7.2 (1,106,495 542} (1,106,455, 542)

l 4@ | IV, Invenfories in 3.801,818, 732,337 | 2101317, 042,243

141 1, Invantores 5801 818,732,837 | 3,104, 317 842,242
TS V. Cthar current asseis T 045051, 37F 50,990,023, 548
TE1 1. Shorkterm prepaid sxpenszes 18,0M18,118,879 12,195 260 502
152 2. Value-added tx ded etibbe 06 M4, 501,065 O, e 752,040
153 3. Tax and other recelvabibes

from the Stals 0,333,333 -




Taseca Land Investrment Joint Stock Company

SEPARATE BALANGE SHEET {continued)
as at 31 December 2024

Code

200

210
e

230
2241
222
223
227
228
228

Z30
231
e

240
242

250
251

253

280
221

270

ASEETS

I

I

i,

.

NON-GLIRRENT AS3ETS

Long-term recelvablas
1.  Othar long-tarm receivablas

Fixoud 2586ls
1. Tangible fivad as=es
Cost
Accumuiated depraclation
2. Intangible fived assets
Cost
AgcLrm lated amosation

fnvestmernt properties
1. Cost
2. Accumylated dapraciation

Long-tertn assals in progress
1, Construction B pregress

Long-tari investhnonts
[pesbments In subsidlaries
|mrasiments in associabes
Imrastmant in other entiias
Provision for diminution in
valua of long=tenm
investments

el b

Qiter forig-lenm aasels
1. Longtemm prepakd axpanses
2. Defemrsd tax assels

TOTAL ASSETS

Moles Ending bafance

3.821,916,682,780

472,671,205, 965
g 472 671,205,966

23,005,236,536
11 22 950 611,155
43,884,428 080
(20,624,815, 815)
4582537

302 560 000

(258,034, 628

48 761,483 330
{48 701,493, 330

453,263 448,163
12 493 263 446,103

14 2 520, 275,8138,881
2 TEG 826 228 241

34,075 500,000

{780,905 450)
12,781,175, 224

4,552,177 504
27.3 8,108,997 720

9,058,067,766,375

BO1-DM

LALATENTE | WINDD

Baginning hafance

3.9038,916,519,872

12,605,968, 955
12 505 908, 266

5,292, 789,676
6,229,774,301
22 610,438,989
{16.580,664 686}
53,015,375
302,560,300
{239,544 BG25)

A8, 701,493,330
{48, 701,493, 330)

342,400,638, 820
342,490,638.520

2,425,954,162,780
3,334 286,646 554
7.000,000.000

34 078, 500,000

(1,410,982, 7394)
AT 433 018,820

15,247 635 462
7.535,283,358

8.374,185,544.955

Ay

m —
DE

Vi



Taseco Land Investmeant Joint Stock Company

SEPARATE BALANCE SHEET {continuad)
as ot 31 Decambar 2024

Code

300

F10
3N
bl

313
314
15

318
30
322

230
337
338
242

400
+1
411
4413
412
421
4217

4210

4401

Wi Thi Khanh Ha

Preparer

RESOURCES

C. LIABILITIES

L Currant liabifitias

1. Short-term trade payahies

2. Short-srm advances from
customers

3. Statutory obigatfions

4, Fayables to amployass

3. Short-termn accrued
= dm] =] gl

6. Other short-term payables

¥, Shorf-larm Ipans

8. Bonus and weltars fund

.  Non-ciyrant fabfiftes
1, Other fong-taam [kbillltes
2. Long-term koans
3. Lohg-term provisions

D. DWNERSZ' EQUITY

. Owners’ equfty
1. 3hare capital
- Ordinary shares with
vating mghtfs
2. Bhare premium
3. Undislrituted arngs
= Uindistndwded eamings
byt end of prige year
- Unolistbisled aamings of
current year

TOTAL HIABILITIES AND
OWNERS' EQUITY

BH-DN
Currene * VND
Mofes Ending balance Eaginring bafance
5,148,088,749,088 4,764,722, 966,915
2,103,(N0,333,853  2.5683,860,672,500
15.1 320, 713277620 508,713.130,207
152 130, 792,185,380 13,612.618,20C
16 B0.AGT 940 816 423 368 525,126
14,957, UBG,454 12,932,186, 734
17 100,806, 739,062 191, 202,001,923
13 365006, 378,202 0,445, 378 654
15 1,080,848 641,322 874,756,730, 738
20 28977 101,028 4, 830,000,000
3,043 088475193 2. TORBEZ 318,316
18 105,786,581,088 270,824 857 7346
15 2,829.30M1.834,095 1,905.937 458,580
10,000,040, 000 10.080,000,000
3912990,017.200  3,600,462.556,040
21 3812089017 289 3,608 462 556 G40
2979000000000 2,970,000,000,000
2970000000000 2,970,000,000,000
109 420,005,000 109,450,005 000
B30 2.2a9  520,882.501.040
B4, 452 557, 040 47 456,495, 464
A8 036 481, 249 482, 526,005,078
8.059.087, 766,375  §,374,185,544.85%
Hanal. Vielnam
H_Jr_ﬁw-lﬁ”ﬂ-jg% 26 Marc 2025
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Meouyen Thi Kim Mgan

Chiaf Accountant

General Director
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

SEPARATE INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 Decembear 2024

Ciovle

01

10

11

o R

£5

30
31
32
40
50
51

52
(14

“Wir Thi Khanh Ha

Preparer

TEMZ

1.

Z

1.
11.
12
1.
14.
15.

18.
17.

Revenue from sale of goods
and rendering of servicesn

Creduetlonrs

Mot ravenua from sala of
gaods and rendaring of
SAMVICBS

Cost of goods sokd end
sarvicas rondarad

Gross profit from sale of
goils and rendering of
sarvlcas

FInanca Income

FInance exXpansas
in winch: interast axpanzes

Selling expanses

General ard adminlstrative
XN S OE

Operating profit

dther income

{ther expenses

ather (lossyoaln
Accounting profit before tax

Current orpormte inearme tax
SXpansa

Dafarred tax Incomadsipansa)
Mat profit after tax

Mofas

221
221

2241

i3

25

271
27.3

Mepupen Thi Klm Ngan

Chief Assaoyntant

Curant yaar

1,122491. 817,777

1,422,451 917,777

(765,282,442 598)

357.069,475,179
796,278,704,174

{169,415,663,462)
(154 807, 339,558

147,188,297 424)

107 ,5651,811,043)
528,091,807 423
2,164,008 425
{8,991 506,061}
{6,216,997.628}
822,874, 800,787

(45,481,508,665)
620,261,163
T75,013,552,285

yeAtRRy
o e

27 Ny
= oM bl j
v eAY ndn sa»
? TASE
T e

F
Lr

BOz2-DOM

Curanc 1 ¥ND

Fravious year

2677 373.620.714

2,677,372,620,714

(1,876,620,936,689)

B0O,762,684,125
33,744,330,965

(49.285,711,733)
(48,899, 268, 354

(7F3.113.573.227)

{96,567,651,652}
615,540,048,373
15,062,703,058
i4,822,113,035}
10.260,590,626
625 800,839,204

(124,520,229,531)
(13.614,354,046)
487,356, 055,576

Hanoi, Vietnam

28 March 025

ran Tung

Genaral Diractor



Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

SEPARATE CASH FLOWW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 Decambar 2024

Code ITEMS

10
12
13
14

15
17

20

20

I'r

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATIMNG ACTIVITIES

Profit hefars tax
Adfnsimants for

Depreciation of fangible fved

ascats and amortisatan of

inknglble iod assets

Provisions

Profibs from investing achivities 2z
Imerest expenses and bond 24
insurance

tiperating profit before changes in
warking capital

Bacreasaf(incraaza) in
receivables

Inersase i nventorles
[CeCreasepinorease In payables
(incrazsapdecreass in prepaid
EXPEN3Ss

Decrease in held-for-trading
securiies

Interest paid

Corporate income b paid 18
Other cash outfliows figr operating
activiiies

Met cash Aows used in operating
aitivitles

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
FPurchasa and constmction of
Tixed assels and other long-term
a5sats

Loans bo other entites
Collectiens from Romowars
Payrnants for Investmeaits [n
ather entities

Prceeds from sake of
investents in ofher entties
Interest and dividancs recaived

Nat cazh flows fromvjuzsed inj
investing activibes

10

hofes

Curmentt yoar

422,874,809,787

4,061,542 231
(620,073, 344)
{706 278,704 174}
158,577,426 498

186,815,000, 08
351,776,204 545
(5459, 825 134,041}
(856, 481,201,250)
(313425 530

(Z78.851,640,095)
(or SEQ9FY 7R

(4,830,000, HHY)

{1.209,571,180,152)

(861,201 ,B57.130)
(301,452, 000.000)
228, 530.200,000

(104.431,5681.757)

862,248 486, 800
§74 804 827 128

B03-0N

Curranc - WD
Araviods year

62%,800,629,204

9,166,048 561
(2 061 279,077}
(31,407 220,965)
48,699,265.384

GO0, 3U7, 454,407

{404 535,766,176}

(1,228,453 430,145)

373,018,505,120
5,402 708,739
13,870, 158,077
(112,687, 311,247)
(158,208 440 244 )

(3, 200, DO, 000)

(D5Z,595,120.46K)

(83,330, 579,248)
(410.2968,771,230)
54,020, 000,000

{6A0,3846 942,573)

51,240 000 ()
65,030 .650,200

593,298,975,141 (1,001,725,642,573)

S22

s

N



Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company Eitk3-LiN

SEPARATE CASH FLOW STATEMEMT {continued}
fiar the yaar endad 31 December 2024

Currenc | WD
Coda ITEMS MNotes Currant yaar Frevious year
. CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
31 {Capital contributicon and
issuance of shares 532,500 000 -
a3 Brawdown of bomowings 2 8302 524 030891 3833 683 131,370
34 Repayment of bomowings (1611,383 326,127y (1,745.576,825 669)
a5 Dividands paid (4358595 898.915) {53,806, 507 610}
40 Mot cash Aows from financing
acthritlas TRV, FTT 445,845 1,830,208,704 001
60  HNat Ingreasaf{dacreasa) In eash
For the year 176,505,240,83E {115,020,%69,250)
60 Cash and cash equivalants at
baginning of year 174,776,740 9651 286,797,710,211
&1  Impact of exchange rate fluctuakion “ -
it Cash and cash agubvalgnts at
end of yaar & 348.281.981 798 171 776,740 981

Hanel, Wistharm

o y 0P ey, 26 Mar 2025
o e
: = o phi
- TASE .
_?h
Wu Thi Khanh Ha Mouyen Thi Kim Mgan ¥, gwe &0 Tung
Preparer Chiaf Accountant ral Director
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

Counsolidated financial statarmerts

For the year endad 31 Decambar 2024

Shape the future
with confidence



Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

Consdlidated financial statements

For the year erded 31 December 2074
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

EEPORT OF MANAGEMENT

THE COMPANY

Taseco Land nvestment Joint Stock Company (Mihe Company™ is a jaint stock company incormoratad
durer the Law oh Enterprise of Yietham in pursgant e tha Bustness Redistration Cerificate Mo,
M0407B036 issued by Hanoi Departmant of Planning and nvestment on 2% July 2009 and the
subseguem amended Business Registration Certificates, with the 22 amendment daled 17 Marsh
2028 as the test,

Tha principat activitis of the Company and its subsid@anes are investing and tading real estate
proparties; prowiding construction service, leasing and property management services, hotel
managemernt consulting, accommedstion services, restaurants, catering, post-investrment project
operation services and other ackvities.

The parent company of the Company is Taseon Group Joltt Stock Company " Taseso Graop').

Tha Company’s haad office is locatad at 1% floor, NO2-T1 building, Diplomatic Complex, Xuan Tao
street, Xuan Tao ward, Bac Tu Liem distict, Hanol city, Viatnam.

BOARD CF ESRECTORS

Membears of the Board of Directors dening the year and at the date of this report are:
Mr. Pham Wgoe Thanh Chairman

hr. Mguyen Minh Hai Wice Chaiman

Mr. Do Tuan Anh vio= Chainman

Mr. Do Viet Thanh KMember

Mr. Mejiyen Tram Tung Member

MANAGEMENT

kiambers of management dunng the year and at the date of this report are;

Rir. Mguryen Tran Tung General CHrector

Mr. [k Yiet Thanh Daputy Directar

kEr. Nguyen Yan Mghia Deputy Director

M. Yu Guoc Huy Deputy Dirschar

hir. Bui Xuan Yuong Dty Directar

Ms. Oac Thi Lan Huong Deputy Director

Mr. Mga Thanh Dung Deputy Director Appaintad on 3 Juna 2024
Mr. Khuat Trung Thang Deputy Director Resigned on 1 Movember 2024
BOARD OF SUPERVISION

Members of the Board of Supemvisitn dunng the year and at the date of this report aee:
Kk=_ Tran Thi Loan Head

Ms_ Nguyen Thi Huong Member

M. Dang Xuan Hen Member

LEGAL REPRESENTATWE

The legal reprezentative of the Company durineg the yesr and at the date of this report is Mr Nguyen
Tran Tung. Genera| Direcior,

AUDITOR
The auditor of the Compary 5 BEmst £ Young Yietnam Limited,

f




Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

REPORT OF MANASERMEMNT

Managameant of Tagaco Land Ihvestment Joint Stock Company {"the Company™) is pleased ta present
thiz report and the consclidated financial staterrents of the Coempany and ks subsidlanzs (ool letlvely
rafarred to a5 “the Group™) for the year anded 31 Becarber 2024

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIEILITY & RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Managamant is rezponsifle far the consalidated financial statements of each finencial year which give
a bue and fair view of the consolidated financial posion af the Group and of he consdalidatad results
af its operationz and its consolidated cash flows for the year. In prepaning bhose consolidated inancial
statements, managemeant 15 reguired b

# selact suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
¥ make judoerments and estimates that are reasonabla and pradent;

* state whether sppliceble acoounting standards have Been falloyved, subjzet b any matenal
departures disclosed and explalned In the consolldated Rnancial staterments; and

# prepars the consolidated financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Groap will continue its businass,

Managemeant is responsitile for ensuing hat proper asccunting records are kept whilsh disalose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the consolidated financial position of the Group and for ensuring
that the accounting records comply with the applied accourting system. It is also responsible for
gafeguarding the sssets of the Group and hence for Bking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other inegu l&ritiss,

Managarment confimed that it has complied with the above requirements in prepanng the
sccompanying consdidated financial statements.

STATEMENT BY WANAGEMENT

Management does hereby state that in s opinion, the accompanying consvbidated financel
staternents give a tree and fair view of the consolidated financial positlon of the: Group as at 31
December 2024 and of dwe consolldated resalts of its operatlons and its consdlidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Yielmamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Entarprize
Agsounting System and the stalutery requirements releyvant to the preparation and presankation of the
consulidated financial statements.

4137
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quyen Tran Tung
Gensral Dirsalo

Hanoi, Vietnam

26 March 2025
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Federen:e; 115250145 E- S84 1 BE00-HN

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REFORT

To:  The Sharehalders of Taseco Land Investment Jolnt Stock Company

Ve haye audited the accompanying censalidated financial stalements of Taseco Land Investmant Joird
Stock Company {"the Company) and its subsidianes {collactivaly rafarred to as “the Sreup®), as prepared
a1 26 March 2025 and set out on page 5 to 73, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as ar 31
December 2024, and the conzolidated income statement and conzolidated cazh Aow statament for ke
year then snded and the notes thersto.

Managemant's responsibility

Management i responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of these conzolidatad Anancial
sterements it accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vielnamese Enterprise Accounting
System and the stahteny reguiraments relsvant to the praparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statemants, and for such infemal conbrol as management determmines is neeessany b anable the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from matedal
rsstatament, whether due to fraud or enror,

Abiditors” raspansiiy

Qur regponetbility is to exprese an opinlon on these consolldated financial sabaments based on our
audit We conductad qur audit in accordanca with Vietnamese Standards an Auditing, Those standards
racjuing that we comply with athical requiremants and plan and perfom he audit to cbiain reasonabls
agazurance shout whether the consolidatad financial skatemantz ara free from matarizl misetatemant.

An audit involves perfamming proceduras to obtain audit evidance about the amounts and dizclosures in
the consolicated finansial stadernants. The procedures selacted depend on the auditors’ judgment,
Including the assassment of the risks of materal misstaternent of the consolidated financral statenrents,
whether due ta fraud or error. In making thaoze nzk asseszments. the auditors consider intarnat control
relevant to the Group's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidsted financial =Etemants in order
o desigh audit procadures that are appraprate o the clrcl mstances, buk rat B lhe parposs of
EMpressing an opinion on the efecivenass of the Group's infemal contral. At agdit also includes
euvaluating the appropriabeness of accounting policies used and the rezsonablaness of accounting
estimates made by management as well as evaluating the averall presentation of the consdlidatad
fmanclal staterments.

Wi baligwve Ihat the audil evidence we have obtalned is sufflclent and appropnite to provide & basiz for
OuUr aUdi cfpition.

& usmneen inn o7 B el 3 Yoneen 5kl Smnlal



Shape the future
with conflderce

Opinfon

In our opinion, the consclidatad financial statements give a true end fair view, in alf matenal mspacts, of
the sonsolidated financial posiion of the Group as 2t 31 December 2024, and of the consolidated results
of ite oparatlons and s consolidated cash flows for the year then anded in acgordance with Vielnamess
Accounting Stamdards, Viethamsese Entemprise Accounting System and the statutory requiraments
relevant to the preparation and prasantation of the consolldated financial statements.

Er Yietnam Limited

! 2,
B S L LI
= L AT

r G o+
. NAM
CR
Ph A Le Hong Wan
Deputy Seneral Director Auditor
Aardit Practising Registation

Audit Practising Regisfration

Cerificate Mo, 2588-023-004-1 Cerllficate Mo, 4432-2023-004-1

Hanat, Vistnam

26 March 20253
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Cpmpany B01-DN/HN
COMSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
a= at 3t Daceamber 2024
Gunanr;t: YD
Code | ASSETS Minfgs Ending balanga | Beginning bafanne
108 | A GCURRENT ASSETS 6,174,083, 784,146 | 5,706,231,935,650
it | 1. Cashand eash aquivalents a 58 FOF 110307 280,029,.511,028
111 1. Cash : 142,318 650,013 75, THE. 228 551
1132 2. Cash equivalents 217,300, 450 288 213273281 37T
120 | . Shori-fsm: invesfments 113,286.000,000 77,921 063,000
123 T.  Held-to-maturily investments 7] 113,230, 000,000 T7821,000,000
14 | I Cument sceoynts racelvabla 1402 235048487 [ 1,357 886,282,118
134 1. Shor-tarm trade recevables | 71 EOG 980158 88d | B72,511,57¢, 090
132 2. Short-term advances o
suppliers 7.2 3H2,774,175,596 SU8 617720 354
135 2, Shor-term oan recevables B Y4 1,040, 003,000 117,570, 500,000
135 4. Qther ghort-tem receivabias B 33512 820,002 B8, 986,202 455
137 B, Provision for doubiful short-
tarm receirabkas 1 {12,080,306,011) (9,804 915740}
146 V. Invantoras ik ) 4,078, 812402, 718 | 3,040,997, 437 281
144 1. Inventories 4,078,812 402 718 | 3,840 997 437 291
150 V. Ofher corrent 2ssels 120,055,322, 6456 T80, 397,705,213
151 1. Shortterm prepald expenses 17.561.203,663 21 468 589 002
152 2. Valoe added tax deductide 102, 435,631,804 116,026, 383,713
152 2, Tax and other raceivaiies
from the St=te 71487373 2. 902 731 584

EPEs

1H e KA
YOUNC

VAN



Taseco Land Invastment Joint Stock Company

COMNSOLIDATED EALAMCE SHEET {continued)
as at 3t December 2024

Coola

200

210
215

218
219
2
221
222
223
278
229
2

240
241

242
250

252
253

i
251

270

ASGETS

.

M.

3"

NONM-CURREENT AS3ETS

Long-term recefvalles

1. Leng-tarat kean
receivabes

2. Clher long-term
receivabies

3. Provision for douhiful
lang-temt recaiables

Fixad aszals
t. Tangible Mxad azssks
Cost
Anarimy lated depraciation
2. Intangible fined assets
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

fnvestmeant properias
T Cost

2. Accurmilated depreciation

Lokg-tarn assofs

progress

1. Long-tern work in
progess

2. Constructhan b pregress

L orog-tarm lnvestments

1. |nvestments in associates

£ Investment Inother
antitles

3. Provision for iong-term
investments

Orhear fong-t8rim §338L%

1. Long-tem prepaid
expenses

2. Defered By assets

3 Goodwill

TOTAL ASSETS

MNotes

13

14

T3

15

ig
18.1

18.2

12
3.3
19

Endiitg batancg

3,150,044,628,110
820,000, 878,522
128, 100,40, 000
506,191,970,723
(14,281,153,800}
853,862 25,852
566,415,963 120
B63,182 330,138
(0G, TES, A75.018)
287 446,662,732
00,044 494 417
{12,587 821,685)
218,655,158,832

302 623,837,135
(72,768,678,353)

1,131, 787.834.005

1,191,787 834,095

25,500,630,457
2 805,935,507

44,184,600, Q00
(6,290,504 450}
120,028, 367,950
648, 380,838,294

20,3901810,302
39557.113 354

9,324,138,412,256

BO1-DN/HN

crimeng | YIvD

Beginning halamce
{Rlastatend)

4,376,350,512,740
1,033,583 714, 797
B31,157,120,000
MG, 717,748 587
(14,291,153 803
848 501,783,259
554 550,518 546
623,556,508, 313
{8,005, 570, 78T
204 050,364 673
257,260,188.256
{2,318,323,383)
330,650, 354,359
F02.B25 637,186
{81,983452 2387
1,955,519,731,528

316,022, 120,710
16304897 610,818

44,952, 457,258
7.578,820,132

46,274,600,000
{7.960,952,734)
182,762, 760,829
DE_ 282 564,169

21,901 488,449
43 578,308,241

10,082,622,748,350




Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company 801-DMHN
CONSOLIDATED BALAMNCE SHEET {continuad)
as at 31 December 2024
Curreney: WD
Seginnimg halanee
Code | RESOURCES Moteas Ending hafaos fResiated)
M0 | <. LABILITIES 5,089,922 995,081 | ©,005,356,544,036
310 |1 Current liabilities 2,084,244,234,237 | 3,468 287,530,660
311 1. Short-term trede payables 0.1 42€ 262 526 608 | 474,308,707, 705
3z 2. Short-term advances from
CUStOmErs 202 132, 753,661,202 25, 717,251,219
313 3. Stalutery obligations 21 220, 795 543 808 457 156,773,011
314 4. Payables to employees 32 248 158 203 32 585 608 597
K3 3 5, Shorl-termm acerued expenses | 22 115,908, 661,536 230, 0036, 1053 440
218 & ZShor-tarm unaarnad
revenues 0.081.223.474 8,552 562 354
Jig 7. Shortterm other payatlss 21 300290651400 | 1105877 451,659
320 B, Short-term kans 25 805 041,787 413 | 11281589 711,930
322 8. Bonus and welfare fund 27 28 581 440 2858 ¥,223,3308,252
32 | N Nor-cumreni Kabifites 3,015,678, 760,848 | 2,537,060,013,376
3365 1. Long-term unearnad
FBVETIES 23 25 873 445,063 79,442 157 141
337 2. Oihar long-berm Fabilitiss 24 127,886,676,360 |  214,802,765,485
S8 d. Long-tami ioans 29 26594 714,741,034 | 2.136.654,386,751
341 4. Deferred x lizbilities 34.3 143,320123 277 148,117,801 728
42 5. Lohg-tenm proviskons 26 23,883,774,060 10,251,861,27T1
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Taseco Land [nvestment Joint Stock Company

CONSOLDATED BALANMCE SHEET [continued)

as at 31 Decarmbar 2024

Cocle RESQURCES

400 0. OWNERS® EQUITY

470 L Owmners' equity

4199 1. Share capital

AR = Chdimary shares with
vofing rights

41z 2. Share premium

420 3. Cther funds belanging to

TS LIty

421 4. Lindigtributed samings

4218 - Undfisttibuted sannngs
Ly e and of pricr ear

dzth - Lndisfibutad samings
of curmant yaar

425 &. HNon=contraolling interests

440 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

OWNERS' EQUITY

YU Thi Khanh Ha
Preparer

Motes

Wyuyen Thi Kitn Moan
Chief Accountant

Enciing balats

4,724,215 417,175

4,224 215,497,175
2.4870.0040,000 000

2 570,000,000, 000
106, 480,008,000

6315008, 3116
638,848,057, 721

2,369, 4.3G, 359

G3F 576,527,362
493 474,345 138

©,324,128,412 256

e

EU1-DMHN

cumanc | WND

Eeninning halance
{Restatan)

4,077, 266,204,354

4,077,268, 204,354
2,870,000, 0o, 000

2,970,000, D0, (00
108,480,005, 000

1,315,008, 316
447 7BO, 350 052

F9326,438, 018

J6E 453 912,033
543,690, 340, 536

10,082,622,748,190

Hang, Yiekham

| 26 March 2025
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company BO2-ON/HN
CONSOLIDATED INMCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 Becember 2024
Currency: VD
Coda | ITEMS My Current pear Frewious year
o1 1. Reovanuse from sale aof
goods and rendering of
SBrvices 29.1 1,684 455,455400 | 3,237 812 268,032
02 2. Deductonsz 291 - -
10 3. Net revenue from gale of
goods and rendaring of
SArvVices 29.1 1,684 455, 455400 | 3237 812 268,032
1 4. Costof goody seid and
services rendered 60 | {1,264.5255635823) | [2347,451.43,559)
20 8 Gross proflt from sala of
goods and randerfng of
SBrviCes 419,527,889,777 254, 180,945,143
21 8. Finance income 232 825 847,560,379 85,108,8.26,945
22 | 7. Fmance sxpansas M {201,173,971,651) (99,212,748,099}
23 7 which: Interest axponsas {171, 882,525, 348] (75879130 121}
24 8. Shares of profit of
a3sotiatey 13.1 230,417 991 166,824, 26C
25 19 Salling expenses az (56,729,376,084) (85.107.814,704}
26 18. fseneral and administrative
eXpenses R {195,830,008,0001 | 1178,200,959,677}
60 | 11. Qperating profit 828,292 421,342 612 915,072 877
31 12. QOther incoma 4.493,280,051 22,081,180,211
az 18. Other expences 197 AT Z 144 935 (7,641,052,185)
40 | 14, Other (loss)profit {92,673, 864 384 14.420,11€.026
50 | 15. Accoumting profit befors tax B76,613,556,458 §27,335,100,903
51 14. Currant comporate Ineoms
fax expansa M| (194,701,83580%) | {151,594,780.304)
52 17. Deferred tax
incomef{expenses) 3.4 4,138,223,993 |3,053,030,601)
60 | 18. Met profit after tax 683,099,849 842 472,685 378,918
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stack Company

CONSOUDATED INCOME STATEWENT {continuad)

for the y2ar anded 31 Decamber 2024

Code TTEMS

totes

&1 1%, Net profit after tax attributablo
to sharaholders of the parent

62 20. Mef profit after tax attibutable
to non-controlling interests

70 21. Basiz eamings per share

T1 24, Diluted earnings per share

“u Thl Khenh Ha
Prapansr

Mguyan Thi Kim Mgan

Chiaf Accountant

o

Current vear

664,816,258,781

BOZ2-DNHMN

Currang @ Y

Frevous yegr

456,768,799,382

20,283,601,051 15,8%6,580,536
2147 1,532
2147 1,522
Hand, Vielnam
. 28 March 20
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Taseca Land Investment Joint Stock Company

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATENENT
fow the year andad 31 Deacamber 2024

Coge (TEMS Motas
I. CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ALTIVITIES
Nt  Profit before tax
Adjustments for.

2 Ceprecistion of tangible fixed
asset, investment properties and
amrtisation of intangible froed
assats (including amortisaiion of
goodwill}

03 Provisions

5 Profit from investing activities

05 Interazt expanses and bonds=
isEUance costs

08 Operating profit before changes in

worklng saphal

L] Dacresse{increass) it receivables

10 tncrease in inventaries

11 (Decregselinceease in payakles

12 Decreasafincreass) In prepaid
AXPANSAL

T3 Decrease in held-for-trading
sequnties

14 Interest pald

15 Corporabe incorme tax peld 21

17 Cther cash outfiows for oparating
actlvities

20 Metcash flows used in oparating

acthitlns
#. CASH FLOWS FROM INMVESTING
ACTMITIES

21 Purchase and construction of fixed
azsets and other long-temm azsels

L Procesds from dispasals of flxed
assets and other long-tamn asseats

23 Loans to other entities

24 Collechions from bomowers

25 Paymems for investimeants it otfver
entibies {net off cash hold by antity
being aoguired)

26 Proceeds from sale of investments
in cther entities (net off cash hold
by entity baing disposed}

27 Intarast receied

30  MNet cash flows fromf{used inj

investing ectivities

1

CLrmst s

875,611,556 456

59 614,186,519
15287,229,716
(932,124,186, 650)
171,BB4, 525, 348
200,275,312 491

29 461,413,631
(457,154, 472089}
(1,210,854, 308, 188)

22 653,913,589

(313,616,204,444)
(80,061, 750,988}

{5,859, 00 000}

{1,795,005,006,9091)

(780,972, 2865,108)

@1, 660,786
{156.477,000,000)
799,810,720,000

(16,827 581, 757)

2,247 077,531,798
0O 671,368,655

2.153,374,623,41%

BO3-DM/HBM

Curmne | VIND
Pravious yegar

£27,335,190,903

38,650,532, 068
5,734 509,103
(78, 443 D86 £659)

F878.130,121

667,208,275,526
(436,521,437.350)

{1,287 BOT 282894}

a7, 017642477
(36,248,510,943}
13,870,158,077
(123,341, 168,308}
(1735435 2860, 100}

{3,206, 000, B0}

11,311,561,607,565)

(610,744,603, 082}

(2B0.604,571,338)
295, 414,400,000

(268,208,404, 527)

4 05,000,000
26,187 448,072

(904,074,733,777)




Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (cantinuesd)

for the year ended 31 December 2024

Ot

61

T

“Yu Thi Khanh Ha

Preparar

ITEMS Mdirfiens

lll. CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contri bution and
issuancea of shares
Capital redermphbon
Drrawdown of borrowings
Repayment of boamronwings
Dilvlclends paid

MNet cash flows {used inyfrom
financing activities

Met increasefjdecreassa) in gash
for tha year

Lash and gash equlvalants at the
begianing of the year

Impact of exchange rate Auctustion

Cash and cash equivalants at the
arx} of tha year 5

Mguyen Thi Kim Kgan
Chief fccountant

12

BO3-DHIHN
Chrane | VYND
Curant yaar Frevits wear
gﬁn
842500000 11.502.000.000 ion
{14 143 D0E 023} . ERNS
2B T2 251873 4167 Bo7 066,417
{1,726,426,238, 951} {2067, 845 384 413} W
(456 462 525 0d1) (3073 262.530) };,\
&
(167,691,928 142y 2,0384TE6.409,674

1Tr0877,509,275  [177,159,931,6888)

2E8,029 511,025 dE6,18%, 442,606

459707110301 289,029,511,028

Hanaoi, Vietnam

A OA07R 26 March 202
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TASECO LAND INVESTMENT
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No. 02/2025/TTr-HDQT

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

PROPOSAL

Hanoi, March 28% 2025

Approval of after-tax profit distribution in 2024 and the plan for after-tax profit

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020 and guiding documents;

distribution in 2025

To: General Meeting of Shareholders

Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to the Charter of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company
(hereinafier referred to as the "Company”) and the provisions of current law;

Pursuant to the audited 2024 Financial Statements.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders the profit distribution plan in 2024 and the profit distribution plan in 2025
as follows:

“d \'.s AL
o

7/

L)

I. Report on profit distribution results in 2024 A
No. Indicator Amount (VND) \’
A | Figures on the separate Financial Statements
| Undistributed earnings by the end of 2023 529,982,551,040
2 Profit after corporate income tax in 2024 775,013,562,285
Dividend 2023 in Cash, paid in September 2024 (15% par
3 value, based on Charter capital of VND 2,970 billion) 443,500,000,000
4 | Deduction of reward and welfare funds 25,977,101,036
| Accumulated undistributed profit after tax as of | 833,519,012,289
December 31, 2024 (5=1+2-3-4)
B | Figures on the consolidated financial statements
1 Undistributed earnings by the end of 2023 447,780,350,052
2 Profit after corporate income tax in 2024, in which: 685,099,930,448
4 Profit afte:r tax attributable to shareholders of the parent 664,816,258 791
company in 2024 -
b | Profit after tax attributable to non controlling interest 20,283,691,051
— : = =
3 Dividends 2023 in cash, paid in September 2024 15% par 445,500,000,000

value, based on Charter capital of VND 2,970 billion)

f
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No. Indicator Amount (VND)
4 | Adjust merge entries 6,343,314
5 Deduction of reward and welfare funds 27,157,101,036
6 Accumulated undistributed profit after tax as of [ 639,946,057,721
December 31, 2024 (6=1+2(a)-3+4-5)
II. Approval of profit distribution in 2024
No. Indicator Amount (VND)
Payment of cash dividends in 2024 (15% par value,
1 | based on Charter capital of VND 3,118.5 billion) 467,772, 0,000
Retained earnings carried over to 2025 — Separate
2 | Financial Statements (I12=L.A.5-T1.1) 365,744,012,289
3 Retained earnings carried over to 2025 — Consolidated 172,171,057,721
Financial Statements (I1.3=1.B.6-11.1)
II1. Profit distribution plan in 2025 o
. Rate (%) g bN
1o, Tnctientur Amount (VND): o/l 11
Profit after corporate income tax in 2025- Separate 4kl g
1 Financial Statements 533,000,000,800C
’ P%'oﬁt ffﬁer corporate income tax in 2025- Consolidated 536,000,000,000 -
Financial Statements
Deduction of reward and welfare funds Up to 3%
0
4 | Expected dividend rate [

IV. Implementation

1

Assign the Board of Directors to organize the payment of dividends for 2024

according to the rate approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. Based on the actual production and business activities of the Company and its

member companies in 2025 and the market situation, within the ratio approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors is authorized to decide: (i)

advance payment of dividends for 2025; (ii) allocate and use the reward and welfare

fund.

The Board of Directors is responsible for reporting and explaining the above

contents to shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.



Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration
and approval. W

Respect.x’.:'"’

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF
- %TSB;OS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Save: Office, Legal Department. .

= [ GO PRAN DA
*| BAT DONG SAN

Pham Ngoc Thanh



TASECO LAND INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT_STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No. 01/2025/TTr-BKS Hanoi, March 28" ,2025

PROPOSAL

Approval of the list of independent auditing companies to audit the
2025 Financial Statements

To: General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS)
Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020 and guiding documents;
Pursuant to the Charter of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

(hereinafter referred to as the "Company").
pany

The Board of Supervisors (“BOS”) respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval the list of companies
auditing the Company’s 2025 Financial Statements with the following contents:

1. Criteria for selecting an independent auditing firm

the scope and progress of the audit. 1 *| BAT B l,“ .

b) Having no conflict of other legal rights and interests when performing an \1 1itTASE(
for Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company (Example: Not at the same time bemg A
a financial and accounting consulting company and an auditing company for Taseco =
Land Investment Joint Stock Company).

c) Preference for auditing firms:

a) Meeting the requirements of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Comp Z‘ '.ff.i_.!'.'L‘ Iy

- Has experience auditing companies in similar industries and fields as Taseco
Land Investment Joint Stock Company;

- Has a reputation for audit quality.

2. List of auditing firms prioritized for consideration and selection

Based on the above criteria, is the BOS propose to the General Meeting of
Shareholders to consider and approve the list of auditing companies to be selected as
auditing company for the Company’s 2025 Financial Statements as follows:

a) Emst & Young Vietnam Limited

b) Deloitte Vietnam Audit Company Limited.

c¢) PwC (Vietnam) Limited .

d) KPMG Limited.

e) A&C Auditing and Consulting Company Limited.

f) AASC Auditing Company Limited.



3. Implementation

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of Directors to consider
and decide to select 01 of the companies mentioned above to audit the Company's 2025

Financial Statements.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration

and approval.
Best regards./.

Recipient:
- GMS;
- The BOD;

- Archived: Office, Legal Department.

ON BEHALF OF
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

e

OFBOS (V.-

Lurlu TY \,
AN BAU T L o P

““Tran Thi Loan




TASECO LAND INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No: 03/2025/TTr-HDQT Hanoi, March 28" 2025
PROPOSAL

On amending and supplementing the Company’s Charter

To: General meeting of shareholders
Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to the provisions of current laws and practical requirements in the
management and operation of the Company, the Board of Directors of Taseco Land
Investment Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as the "Company”) has
conducted a review of the Company’s Charter. Accordingly, the Board of Directors has
determined that the Charter needs to be amended and supplemented to comply with legal
regulations and facilitate the Company's business operations in practice.

Therefore, the Board of Directors respectfully submits this proposal to the General
Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval of the amendments and
supplements to the Company’s Charter (The details of the amendments and supplements
are specified in the Appendix attached to this Proposal). The Board of Directors also
proposes authorizing the Company's legal representative to sign and promulgate the
revised Charter after approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

We respectfully request the General Meeting of Shareholders to review and
approve this proposal.

Sincerely/ /
Recipient: ON BEHALF OF
-gs aidr;gsssed; e — THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- board of supervisors (for coordination);
- Archived: Office, Legal Department. PHfImAN

Pham Ngoc Thanh



AMENDMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTS TO THE CHARTER OF TASECO LAND INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

(Attached to Proposal No. 03/2025/TTr-HDQT dated March 28, 2025)

Amend
edand Reason for
Supple amendment
No. M- Current Charter Content Proposed Amended and Supplemented Charter Content and
Provisi Supplementati
ons on
Article 6. Charter capital, shares, founding shareholders Article 6. Charter capital, shares In accordance
6.3. The Company's shares on the date of adoption of this Charter |6.3. The Company's shares on the date of adoption of this Charter w1t£1 eurEen:
include common shares. The rights and obligations attached to each | include common shares. The rights and obligations of rcalltyl, e
lype of shares are stipulated in Articles 12 and 13 of this Charter. shareholders holding shares are stipulated in Articles 12 and 13 g;l:r:;ﬁ;:;z
of this Charter". sinck:
Clause | Article 6. Charter capital, shares, founding shareholders Article 6. Charter capital, shares
6.3,
Clause | 0-6. Common shares must be offered on a priority basis to existing | 6.6 Common shares must be offered on a priority basis to existing
I 6.6 shareholders in proportion to their ownership of common shares in | shareholders in proportion to their ownership of common shares Poilita
Article | the Company, unless otherwise decided by the General Meeting of | in the Company, unless otherwise decided by the General it Ectual
6 Shareholders (GMS). Any shares not subscribed by shareholders | Meeting of Sharcholders (GMS). Any shares not subscribed by fosie e
shall be determined by the Board of Directors (BOD). The BOD | shareholders shall be determined by the Board of Directors §
may allocate such shares to other entities under conditions and (BOD). The BOD may allocate such shares to other entities under | °Perations and
methods it deems appropriate, provided that such shares shall not be | conditions and methods it deems appropriate, provided that such | EIB"’&“} legal
sold under more favorable conditions than those offered to existing | shares shall not be sold under more favorable conditions than | fegulations
shareholders, unless the shares are sold through a stock exchange by | those offered to existing sharcholders, unless otherwise appraved
auction.. by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
Article 8. Other securities certificates Article 8. Other securities certificates Compliance
: Bond certificates or other securities certificates of the Company | Bond certificates or other securities certificates of the Company Wlﬂ_l acie
2 antivls (except for offer letters, temporary certificates and similar (except for offer letters, temporary certificates and similar busme,ss
§ documents) are issued with the seal and specimen signature of the | documents) are issued with the seal and signature of the legal A
legal representative of the Company. representative of the Company. relevun‘t lEgal
regulations




Amend

] 5 YRR

ed and
Biipil amendment
No. oty Current Charter Content Proposed Amended and Supplemented Charter Content and
Provid Supplementati
ons on
Article 10. Revocation of shares Article 10. Revocation of shares
10.1. In case a sharcholder fails to make full and timely payment for | 10.1. In case a shareholder fails to make full and timely payment
the purchased shares, the Board of Directors shall notify and have | for the purchase of shares, the Board of Directors shall notify and
the right to request that the shareholder pay the remaining amount | have the right to request that the shareholder pay the outstanding
together with interest on such amount and any costs incurred due fo | amount and be responsible for the total par value of the shares
the failure to make full payment to the Company. o registered for purchase concerning the Company’s financial
obligations arising from the failure to make full payment.
10.4. Revoked shares shall be considered shares eligible for sale.
The Board of Directors may directly sell, redistribute, or settle them | 10.2. The above payment notice must clearly state the new
with the previous owner of the revoked shares or other parties under | payment deadline (at least 07 days from the date of notice
conditions and in a manner deemed appropriate by the Board of issuance), the payment location, and must specify that if payment
Directors. is not made as required, the unpaid shares shall be revoked. Compliance
with actual
; Article | 10.5. Sharcholders holding revoked shares must relinquish their | 10.3. The Board of Directors has the right to revoke shares that | business
- 10 shareholder status with respect to those shares but must still pay all | have not been fully and timely paid in case the requirements in operations and

relevant amounts plus interest at a rate (not exceeding 12% per year)
at the time of revocation, as decided by the Board of Directors, from
the date of revocation until the date of full payment. The Board of
Directors has full authority to enforce the payment of the total share
value at the time of the revocation.

the above notice are not fulfilled.

10.4. Revoked shares shall be considered shares eligible for sale
as prescribed in Clause 3, Article 112 of the Enterprise Law. The
Board of Directors may directly sell, redistribute, or authorize the
sale under conditions and in a manner deemed appropriate by the
Board of Directors.

10.5. Shareholders holding revoked shares must relinquish their
shareholder status with respect to those shares but shall still be
responsible for the total par value of the shares registered for
purchase concerning the Company’s financial obligations at the
time of revocation, as determined by the Board of Directors, from
the date of revocation until the date of full payment. The Board of

relevant legal
regulations

ny =4
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Amend ‘S
ed and | D— T
Supple amendment
No. iantcd Current Charter Content Proposed Amended and Supplemented Charter Content and
Provisi Supplementati
ons on
Directors has full authority to enforce the payment of the total
share value at the time of revocation.
10.6. The revocation notice shall be sent to the holder of the
revoked shares prior to the revocation date. The revocation
remains valid even in cases of errors or negligence in the delivery
of the notice.
Article 15. Rights and obligations of the General Meeting of | Article 15. Rights and obligations of the General Meeting of
Sharcholders Shareholders
I5.1. The annual General Meeting of Shareholders has the right to | 15.1. The General Meeting of Shareholders has the following
discuss and approve: rights and obligations:
a. The Company's annual business performance and results: a. Through the Company's development orientation;
b. The Company's audited annual financial statements; b. Decide on the types of shares and the total number of shares of
¢. Report on the activities of the Board of Directors: each type that are allowed to be offered for sale; decide on the
d. Report on the activities of the Board of Directors: annual dividend rate for each type of shares: Compline
e. Annual profit distribution of the Company; c. Elect, dismiss, remove members of the Board of Directors, itk sckial
Artidle f. Annual business plan, short-term and long-term development plan membcf's‘oﬂhc_Board of S}J]?crvis:ors;‘ _ o . Business
- 5 of the Company; d. Deciding to invest, participate in bidding, auctioning , buying, B ——

g. Total remuneration of the Board of Directors and the Board of

Supervisors;

h. Other matters within authority.

15.2. The annual and extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders shall pass decisions on the following matters:

a. Approval of audited annual financial statements:

b. The annual dividend payment for each type of share is in
accordance with the Law on Enterprises and the rights attached to

that type of share;

¢. Decide on increasing charter capital, types of shares and total

selling, transferring, receiving transfers of projects and assets
with a value equal to or greater than three (03) times the total
value of the Company's assets recorded in the most recent
audited/reviewed financial _statements (including investment
activities in the form of BCC, BOT, BT, BTO contracts...;
contributing capital to establish a company, buying/selling
shares);

¢. Decisions to sign contracts, transactions. issue bonds including
private placements and public issuances of bonds (excluding
contracts and transactions specified in Article 167 of the Law on

relevant legal
regulations

Ay L BRI NN e



No.

Amend
ed and
Supple
mented
Provisi
ons

Current Charter Content

Proposed Amended and Supplemented Charter Content

Reason for
amendment
and
Supplementati
0on

number of shares of each type that are allowed to be offered for
sale;

d. Number of members of the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors;

e. Approve the list of independent auditing companies; decide on
independent auditing companies to conduct audits of the company's
operations, and dismiss independent auditors when deemed
necessary;

f. Elect, dismiss, remove, supplement and replace members of the
Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors;

g. Total remuneration, bonuses and other benefits of members of the
Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors; Report on
remuneration of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors;

h. Amendment and supplement to the Company Charter;

i. Types of shares and number of new shares issued for each type of
shares and the transfer of shares by founding members within the
first three (03) years from the date of establishment;

J. Division, separation, consolidation, merger or conversion of the
Company;

k. Reorganize and dissolve (liquidate) the Company and appoint a
liquidator;

I. Inspect and handle violations by the Board of Directors or the
Board of Supervisors that cause damage to the Company and its
sharcholders;

m. Decisions on investment, participation in bidding, purchase, sale,
transfer, and acceptance of transfer of projects and assets with a
value equal to or greater than three (03) times the total value of the

Enterprise) with a value equal to or greater than two (02) times
the total asset value of the Company as recorded in the most
recent financial statement;

[. Decision to amend and supplement the Company Charter;

g. Through audited annual financial statements:

h. Decision to buy back more than 10% of total sold shares of
each type;

i. Review and handle violations by members of the Board of
Directors and members of the Board of Supervisors that cause
damage to the Company and its shareholders;

1. Decision to reorganize and dissolve the Company:;

k. Decide on the budget or total remuneration, bonuses and other
benefits for the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors;
I. Approve the internal governance regulations: Regulations on
the operation of the Board of Directors and the Board of

Supervisors;

m. Approve the list of approved auditing firms; decide on the
approved auditing firm to conduct audits of the Company's
operations, and dismiss approved auditors when deemed
necessary;

n. Other rights and obligations as prescribed by law.

15.2. The General Meeting of Sharcholders discusses and
approves the following issues:

a. The Company's annual business plan;

b. Audited annual financial statements;

¢. Report of the Board of Directors on the management and
performance of the Board of Directors and each member of the
Board of Directors;

el oAt el : e
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Company's assets recorded in the most recent financial report
(including investment activities in the form of BCC, BOT, BT, BTO
contracts...; capital contribution to establish a company,
purchasc/sale of shares);

n. Decision to sign contracts and transactions (excluding contracts
and transactions specified in Article 167 of the Law on Enterprises)
with a value equal to or greater than two (02) times the total value of
the Company's assets recorded in the most recent financial report;

0. The company signs contracts and transactions with persons
specified in Clause 1, Article 167 of the Law on Enterprises with a
value equal to or greater than thirty-five percent (35%) of the total
value of the enterprise's assets recorded in the most recent financial
report;

p. Contracts, transactions of borrowing, lending, selling assets with
a value greater than ten percent (10%) of the total value of the
Company's assets recorded in the most recent financial report
between the Company and sharcholders owning fifty-one percent
(51%) or more of the total number of voting shares or related
persons of such shareholders:

q. The Company repurchases more than ten percent (10%) of a type
of issued shares;

r. Approve internal governance regulations; operating regulations of
the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors;

s. Other issues as prescribed by law, this Charter and other
regulations of the Company.

15.3. Shareholders are not allowed to vote in the following cases:
a. Approve contracts specified in Clause 15.2 of this Article when
that shareholder or a person related to that shareholder is a party to

d. Report of the Board of Supervisors on the Company's business
results, performance of the Board of Directors and General
Director;

e. Self-assessment report on performance of the Board of
Supervisors and members of the Board of Supervisors;

f. Dividend level for each share of each type;

g. Number of members of the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors;

h. Elect, dismiss, remove members of the Board of Directors,
members of the Board of Supervisors;

i. Decide on the budget or total remuneration, bonuses and other
benefits for the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors;

Jj- Approve the list of approved auditing firms; decide on

approved auditing firms to conduct audits of the company's
operations when deemed necessary:

k. Supplement and amend the Company Charter;

I. Types of shares and number of new shares issued for each
type of shares and transfer of shares by founding members within
the first 03 years from the date of establishment;

m. Division, separation, consolidation, merger or conversion of
the Company;

n. Reorganize and dissolve (liquidate) the Company and appoint
a liquidator;

0. Decision to invest, participate in bidding, auction , purchase,
sale, transfer, and receive transfer of projects and assets with a
value equal to or greater than three (03) times the total value of
the Company's assets recorded in the most recent
audited/reviewed financial _statements (including investment
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the contract;

b. The repurchase of shares by that sharcholder or by a person
related to that shareholder, except in cases where the repurchase of
shares is made in proportion to the ownership ratio of all
sharcholders.

15.4. All resolutions and issues included in the meeting agenda
must be discussed and voted on at the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

activities in the form of BCC, BOT, BT, BTO contracts...; capital
contribution to establish a company, purchase/sale of shares)

p. Decisions to sign contracts, transactions. issue bonds including
private placements and public issuances of bonds (excluding
contracts and transactions specified in Article 167 of the Law on
Enterprise) with a value equal to or greater than two (02) times

the total asset value of the Company as recorded in the most
recent financial statement:
q. Decision to buy back more than 10% of total sold shares of

each type;

r. The Company signs contracts and transactions with the
subjects specified in Clause 1, Article 167 of the Enterprise Law
with a value equal to or greater than 35% of the total value of the
Company's assets recorded in the most recent financial report;

s. Approve the transactions specified in Clause 4, Article 293 of
Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the
Government detailing the implementation of a number of articles
of the Law on Securities;

t. Approve the internal regulations on corporate governance,
regulations on the operation of the Board of Directors,
regulations on the operation of the Board of Supervisors;

u. Other issues as prescribed by law and this Charter.

15.3. All resolutions and issues included in the meeting
agenda must be discussed and voted on at the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

Clause
26.2
Article

Article 26. Composition and term of office of members of the
Board of Directors

Article 26. Composition and term of office of members of the
Board of Directors

Consistency
with applicable
legal
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26 i } ) i ) provisions.
26.2. A member of the Board of Directors is no longer a member | 26.2. A member of the Board of Directors shall no longer be a
of the Board of Directors in the following cases: member of the Board of Directors in the event that he/she is
a. That member is not qualified to be a member of the Board | dismissed, removed or replaced by the General Meeting of
of Directors according to the provisions of the Law on Enterprises | Shareholders in the following cases:
or_is prohibited by law from being a member of the Board of | a. Not meeting the standards and conditions prescribed in Article
Directors: 155 of the Law on Enterprises;
b. The member submits a written resignation to the Company's | b. That member submits a written resignation letter to the
head office; Company's head office;
c. That member has a mental disorder and another member of | c. That member has a mental disorder and another member of the
the Board of Directors has professional evidence proving that he or | Board of Directors has professional evidence proving that he or
she no longer has capacity to act; she no longer has capacity to act;
d. That member does not attend meetings of the Board of | d. That member does not attend meetings of the Board of
Directors continuously for six (06) consecutive months, except in | Directors continuously for six (06) consecutive months, except in
cases of force majeure; cases of force majeure;
e. That_member_is_dismissed by _decision of the General | e. Providing false personal information when submitting to the
Meeting of Shareholders; Company as a candidate for the Board of Directors;
. Providing false personal information when submitting to the | Other cases as prescribed by law.
Company as a candidate for the Board of Directors;
Other cases as prescribed by law and this Charter.
Point h, | Article 27. Rights and Obligations of the Board of Directors Article 27. Rights and Obligations of the Board of Directors ;
' : o _ Reflection of
Clause | 27.2. The rights and obligations of the Board of Directors shall be | 27.2. The rights and obligations of the Board of Directors shall be the Company's
6 272, stipulated by law, the Company's Charter, and resolutions of the stipulated by law, the Company's Charter, and resolutions of the schugl bu]:iness
Article | General Meeting of Shareholders. Specifically, the Board of | General Meeting of Sharcholders. Specifically, the Board of S————
27

Directors shall have the following rights and obligations:

Directors shall have the following rights and obligations:
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h. To approve transactions, investments, purchase and sale | h. To approve transactions, investments, purchase and sale
contracts, loan agreements, lending agreements, and other contracts contracts, loan agreements, lending agreements, and other
with a value equal to or greater than five percent (05%) of the total | contracts (including private placements and public issuances of
asset value recorded in the Company's latest financial statements, | bonds) with a value equal to or greater than five percent (05%) of
except for transactions, investments, and contracts under the | the total asset value recorded in the Company's latest financial
approval authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders; statements, except for transactions, investments, and contracts
1, under the approval authority of the General Meeting of
Shareholders as prescribed by law and this Charter;
Article 40. Responsibility to be honest and avoid conflicts of | Article 40. Responsibility to be honest and avoid conflicts of
interest interest
40.5.  Contracts or transactions between the Company and one or | 40.5. Contracts or transactions between the Company and one
more members of the Board of Directors, Supervisors, General | or more members of the Board of Directors, Supervisors, General
Directors, other executives and individuals, organizations related to | Directors, other executives and individuals, organizations related
them or companies, partners, associations, or organizations of which | to them or companies, partners, associations, or organizations of Congistency
Pointb | members of the Board of Directors, Supervisors, General Directors, | which members of the Board of Directors, Supervisors, General i
Clause | other executives or individuals related to them are members, or have | Directors, other executives or individuals related to them are S _
7 40.5 related financial interests shall not be invalidated in the following | members, or have related financial interests shall not be It:;ze Law on
Article | cases: invalidated in the following cases: 5
40 Enterprises
b. For contracts with a value equal to or greater than thirty-five | b. For contracts with a value equal to or greater than thirty-five | 2020.
percent (35%) of the total asset value recorded in the most recent percent (35%) of the total asset value recorded in the most recent
financial report, the important contents of this contract or | financial report, the important contents of this contract or
transaction as well as the relationships and interests of the members | transaction as well as the relationships and interests of the
of the Board of Directors, Supervisors, General Director, and other | members of the Board of Directors, Supervisors, General
executives have been announced to shareholders with 5o relevant Directors, and other executives have been announced to
interests who have the right to vote on that issue, and those | sharcholders and approved by _the General Meeting of
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shareholders have approved this contract or transaction: Shareholders through votes of shareholders with no related
interests.
Members of the Board of Directors, Supervisors, General Directors,
other executives and organizations and individuals related to the | Members of the Board of Directors, Supervisors, General
above members prohibited from using unpublished Company | Directors, other executives and organizations and individuals
information or disclose it to others to carry out related transactions. | related to the above members prohibited from using unpublished
Company information or disclose it to others to carry out related
transactions.
Article 44. Profit distribution Article 44. Profit distribution
44.4. In case dividends or other amounts related to a type of shares | 44.4. In case dividends or other amounts related to a type of
are paid in cash, the Company must pay in Vietnamese Dong. | shares are paid in cash, the Company must pay in Vietnamese
Payment can be made directly or via bank transfer based on the Dong. Payments may be made directly or via bank transfer based
Clause | bank account details provided by the shareholder. In case the | on the bank account details provided by the shareholder. If the ligrment with
8 44.4 Company has transferred money according to the bank details Company has transferred the funds according to the bank account spplicable Tesa]
Article | provided by the shareholder but the shareholder does not receive the | details provided by the shareholder but the shareholder fails to i
44 money, the Company shall not be liable for such transferred amount. | receive the funds, the Company shall not be liable for such a | PO > OnS-
transferred amount. The payment of dividends for shares listed or
registered for trading on the Stock Exchange may be made
through a _securities company or the Vietnam Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation..
Article 48. Annual financial statement Article 48. Annual financial statement Compliance
48.1. The Company must prepare an annual financial report in | 48.1. The Company must prepare annual financial statements, “'it]} actual
9 Atticle | accordance with the provisions of law, and the report must be | which must be audited in accordance with the provisions of law, | business
48 operations and

audited as stipulated in Article 50 of this Charter. Within the

The Company shall _disclose the audited annual financial

prescribed time limit from the end of each fiscal vear. the C ompeiry

statements in _compliance with regulations on  information

must submit the annual financial report, which has been approved

disclosure in_the securities markei and submit them to the

relevant legal
regulations
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by the General Meeting of Shareholders. to the competent tax | compelent state authorities,
RUo: 48.2. The annual financial statements must include all required
48.2. The amnual financial report must include a business reports, appendices, and explanatory notes as prescribed by the
performance report that truthfully and objectively reflects the | law on corporate accounting. The annual financial statements
Company's profit and loss situation during the fiscal vear, a balance | must provide a truthful and objective reflection of the Company's
sheet that _accurately and objectively reflects the Company's | operations.
financial position at the time of reporting, a cash flow statement,
and notes to the financial statements. 48.3. The Company must prepare and disclose the reviewed semi-
annual financial statements and quarterly financial statements in
48.3. The audited annual financial statements (including the | accordance with _regulations on_information_disclosure in the
auditor's opinion) shall be published on the Company's website and securities _market _and submit _them (o the competent state
disclosed in accordance with the law. authorities.
48.4. Interested organizations and individuals have the right to
inspect_or copy the audited annual financial statements, the
reviewed six-month financial statements, and the guarterly financial
statements during the Company's working hours at its headquarters,
subject to the payment of a reasonable fee for copying.
Article 50. Auditing Article 50. Auditing
50.1. The annual General Meeting of Sharcholders shall appoint an | 50.1. The General Meeting of Sharcholders shall appoint an | Compliance
independent auditing firm or approve a list of independent auditing | independent auditing firm or approve a list of independent | with actual
Article | firms and authorize the Board of Directors to select one from this | auditing firms and authorize the Board of Directors to select one | business
10 50 list to conduct the Company's audit for the following fiscal year, | from this list to conduct the audit of the Company's financial | operations and
based on terms and conditions agreed upon with the Board of | statements for the following fiscal year based on the terms and | relevant legal
Directors. The Company must_prepare and submit its annual | conditions agreed with the Board of Directors. regulations
financial statements to the independent auditing firm afier the end of
50.2. The audit report shall be attached to the Company's annual
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the fiscal vear.

30.2. The independent auditing firm shall review, verify, and issue a

financial statements.

30.3. The independent auditor performing the audii of the

report on the annual financial statements, reflecting the Company's

Company's financial statements shall have the right fo attend the

revenues and expenditures, prepare an audit report, and submit it {0

General Meeting of Shareholders, receive notices and other

the Board of Directors within two (02) months from the end of the

relevant information related to the meeting, and provide opinions

fiscal year.

30.3. A copy of the audit report shall be attached to the Company's

annual financial statements.

50.4. The independent auditor conducting the Company's audit shall
have the right to atiend the General Meeting of Shareholders,
receive notices and other relevant information distributed to
shareholders, and provide opinions at the meeting on matters
related to the audit of the Company's financial statements.

on_matters concerning the audit of the Company's financial
statements.




TASECO LAND INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: 04/2025/TTr-HDQT Hanoi, March 28".,2025

PROPOSAL
Approval of the plan to transfer the Company's stock trading registration on the
UPCOM trading system to stock listing registration
at the HoChiMinh Stock Exchange

To: General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS)
Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020, amended by Law No. 03/2022/QHI15
and guiding documents;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities 2019, amended by Law No. 56/2024/QH15 and
guiding documents;
Pursuant to the Charter of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company.

The Board of Directors of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company
(hereinafter referred to as the "Company") respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for consideration and approval the plan to transfer the registration of shares
of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company on the UPCOM trading system to
register for listing on the Hochiminh Stock Exchange ("HOSE"). Specifically, as follmjg_s_:fff 1075

1. Register for the listing of TAL shares on the HoChiMinh Stock Exchange JUNG 1
delist TAL shares from the UPCOM trading system of the Hanoi Stock Exchange. i g e

2. Stock code: TAL. ‘ 'ASE

3. Type of security: Common stock. \ s

4. Par value: 10,000 VND/share. S

5. Number of shares registered for listing: All shares issued by the Company up to
the time of registration for listing at the HoChiMinh Stock Exchange.

6. Expected time to submit listing registration application: In 2025.

7. Authorization to the Board of Directors:

a) Based on market conditions and business operations, the Board of Directors
shall determine the timing for the share listing registration on HOSE when the company
meets all listing requirements as per legal regulations.

b) Decide and direct relevant departments to carry out the necessary procedures
and complete the application for listing TAL shares on the Hochiminh Stock Exchange,
as well as the procedure for transferring TAL shares from UPCOM to HOSE, including
but not limited to: registering the listing of shares on HOSE, delisting shares from
UPCOM, finalizing the shareholder list at the Vietnam Securities Depository and

Clearing Corporation for the transfer, selecting the timing and offering price for the first
trading day on HOSE.



¢) Carry out other legal procedures as required by relevant authorities to complete
the transfer from UPCOM to HOSE.
Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration

and approval.

Respect./.(*)
Recipient: ON BEHALF OF THE
- GMS; BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- The BOS;

- Archived: Office, Legal Department.
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Pham Ngoc Thanh




TASECO LAND INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom — Happiness
No. 05/2025/TTr-HDQT " Hanoi, March 28% 2025
PROPOSAL

Supplement the Company's business lines

To: General Meeting of Sharcholders (GMS)
Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020 and guiding documents;

Pursuant to the Charter of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company.

The Board of Directors of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company
(hereinafter referred to as the "Company") hereby submits to the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders ("GMS") for consideration and approval of the addition of the
Company's business lines with the following contents:

1. Supplementing business lines

In order to meet the orientation of the Company's production and business
activities in the coming time, the Board of Directors proposes to supplement the /
following business lines and lines:

No. Names of business lines are added Industry Code
1 | Preschool education 8511
2 | Preschool education 8512
3 | Primary education 8521
4 | Lower secondary education 8522
5 | Upper secondary education 8523
6 | Basic-level training 8531
7 | Intermediate-level training 8532




No. Names of business lines are added Industry Code
8 | College-level training 8533
9 | University training 8541
10 | Master training 8542
11 | Doctoral training 8543
12 | Sports and recreation education 8551
13 | Cultural education 8552
14 | Other education n.e.c. 8559
15 | Educational support activities 8560
16 | Hospital and health station activities 8610
17 | Medical and dental practice activities 8620
18 | Preventive medicine activities 8691
19 | Orthopedic and rehabilitation centers 8692
20 | Other human health activities n.e.c 8699

2. Amendment and supplement to the Company Charter

Amend and supplement Clause 1, Article 4 on business lines and professions in
the Company Charter corresponding to the content stated in Clause 1 of this Article.

3. Implementation

Assigning:’authoriziﬁ'ig.‘the General Director - Legal Representative of the Company
to organize and implement tasks related to changing business registration contents,

including but not limited to the following tasks:

according to the provisions of law.

a) Carry out procedures related to adding business lines at the competent Business
Registration Authority, including adjusting detailed content within the scope of business
lines approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

b) Carry out other procedures related to adding business lines and occupations



Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration
and approval.

Respect./. - -

Recipient: ON BEHALF OF THE

g T BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- The e.g.);

- Archived: Office, Legal Department. _ CHAIRM e
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TASECO LAND INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: 06/2025/TTr-HDQT HaNoi, March 28" 2025

PROPOSAL
Election of members of the Board of Directors and
Board of Supervisors for the term 2025-2030

To: General Meeting of Shareholders
Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020, amended by Law No. 03/2022/QHI15
and guiding documents;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities 2019, amended by Law No. 56/2024/0HI15
and guiding documents;

Pursuant to the Charter of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company
(hereinafier referred to as the "Company").

Pursuant to the Election Regulations for the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors members for the 2025-2030 term of Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock
Company.

The 5-year (five-year) term of 2020-2025 of the Board of Directors (hercinafter{_ T
referred to as "BOD"), and the Board of Supervisors (hereinafter referred to as "BO?‘Z}':.':?,? -

4 g
? / CONG
GO PHAN ]

AT BONG
\ e\ TASE(
Shareholders for consideration and approval the election of members of the BOD 3@"}&%___'_

the Company's BOS for the term 2025-2030 with the following contents: S
1. Number of members of the BOD and BOS:
- The number of members of the BOD for the term 2025-2030 is: 05 members,
including 01 independent member of the BOD.
- The number of members of the BOS for the term 2025-2030 is: 03 members.
2. Criteria and conditions for candidates for members of the BOD and BOS of the

Company: specified in the Regulation on Election of Members of the BOD and BOS for
the term 2025-2030.

of the Company shall expire in 2025. Pursuant to the provisions of law and (*
Company's Charter, the BOD respectfully submits to the General Meeting\;{

The application dossier for candidacy/nomination of the BOD and BOS members
shall be regulated in the Election Regulations for the BOD and BOS members for the
2025-2030 term.



The application dossier for candidacy/nomination must be submitted to the
Company no later than 12:00 PM on April 10, 2025, at the following address: 1st Floor,
NO2-T1 Building, Diplomatic Corps Area, Xuan Tao Street, Xuan Tao Ward, Bac Tu
Liem District, Hanoi City.

Only candidacy/nomination dossiers that meet the eligibility criteria and are
submitted to the Company before the aforementioned deadline will be included in the
list of candidates for the BOD and BOS, which will be announced prior to the election.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration
and approval.

f
[

(W
Respect./. -/

Recipient: ON BEHALF OF THE
- GMS; BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- The BOS; T
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